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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Arohan Financial Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arohan Financial Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit, other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed
in our audit

Sr.
No

Key Audit Matter

1

a/_w...,_‘ under ‘Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments’. was relevant in view of the recent |
530CIqR | impairment losses incurred within the |
¥, v./ é\ .

iy
uy *\\ ¥ portfolios.

Measurement of Impairment on Financial
Assets-Loans

Refer Note 3(k) for significant accounting
policies and Note 41 for credit risk
disclosures.

The Company has reported gross loan assets
of INR 5,06,686.12 lacs against which an
impairment loss of INR 28,464.17 lacs has
been recorded. The Company recognised
impairment provision for loan assets based on
the Expected Credit Loss approach laid down

The calculation of impairment losses on loans
is complex and is based on the apptication of

| in

Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s judgment and estimates used
the impairment analysis through
procedures that included, but were not
limited, to the following:

* Obtained an understanding of the modelling
techniques adopted by the Company
including the key inputs and assumptions.
Since modelling assumptions and parameters
are based on historical data, we assessed
whether historical experience  was
representative of current circumstances and

+ Considered the Company’s accounting
policies for estimation of expected credit loss
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—

significant management judgement and the—ron loans and assessed the compliance with

use of different modelling techniques and
assumptions which are uncertain and could
have a material impact on reported profits.
The Company has applied a three-stage
approach based on changes in credit quality
to measure expected credit loss on loans
which is as follows:

 If the loan is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition, then it is classified in ‘Stage 1’
and its credit risk is continuously monitored
by the Company i.e. the default in repayment
is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

» If asignificant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, it is moved to
‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired i.e. the default in repayment is
within the range of 31 to 90 days.

« If the loan is credit-impaired, it is then
moved to ‘Stage 3’ i.e. the default in
repayment is more than 90 days.

The Expected Credit Loss is measured at 12-
month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at

lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan |

assets. Significant management judgement
and assumptions involved in measuring ECL is
required with respect to:

« determining the criteria for a significant
increase in credit risk

» factoring in future economic assumptions

* techniques used to determine probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at
default.

These parameters are derived from the
Company’s internally developed statistical
models and other historical data.

In view of the above, the measurement of
impairment loss on loans was determined to
be a Key Audit Matter in our audit of the
financial statements.

| inputs

the policies in terms of Ind AS 109.

» Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key financial controls over
the completeness and accuracy of the key
and assumptions considered for
calculation, recording and monitoring of the
impairment loss recognized. Also evaluated
the controls over the modelling process,
validation of data and related approvals.

» Tested the assumptions underlying the
impairment identification and quantification
including the forecast of future cash flows by
corroborating it with the revised repayment
schedules of the borrowers which included
the impact of the moratorium and
restructuring.

* Understood and challenged the aforesaid
assumptions through our understanding of
the risk profile of the customers of the
Company.

» Reconciled the total financial assets
considered for ECL estimation with the books
of account to ensure the completeness.

+ Verified, on test check basis, whether
appropriate staging of assets have been
performed basis their days past due. Further,
performed an overall assessment of the ECL
provision levels at each stage.

» Verified assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 on sample
basis and tested that they were allocated to
the appropriate stage. For samples of
exposure, verified the appropriateness of
determining Exposure at Default (EAD), PD
and LGD.

» Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness
of disclosures in compliance with the Ind AS
107 in relation to ECL especially in relation
to judgements used in estimation of ECL
provision.

Information Technology ("IT") Systems and
Controls

The Company has a complex IT system to
support its recording of customer’s
operational data, business processes,
ensuring complete and accurate processing
of financial transactions and supporting the
overall internal control framework.

In particular, the IT system is used for
recording all disbursements and collections,
identification and tagging of pledged loans to

Our audit procedures with respect to this
matter include, but were not limited to the
following:

» Involved IT specialists as part of the audit
for the purpose of testing the IT general
controls and application controls (automated
and semi-automated controls) to determine
the accuracy of the information produced by
the Company’s IT systems.
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customers and calculating interest income | « Obtained a comprehensive understanding
and overdue days. of IT applications landscape implemented at
The Company’s accounting and financial | the Company. It was followed by process
reporting processes are dependent on understanding, mapping of applications to
automated controls enabled by IT systems | the same and understanding financial risks
which impacts key financial accounting and | posed by people-process and technology.
reporting items such as loans, interest
income, impairment on loans amongst | « Key IT audit procedures includes testing
others. The reliability and security of IT | design and operating effectiveness of key
systems play a key role in the business | controls operating over user access
operation. The controls implemented by the management (which includes user access
Company in its IT environment determine the provisioning, de-provisioning, access review,
integrity, accuracy, completeness and password configuration review, segregation
validity of data that js processed by the | of duties and privilege access), change
applications and is ultimately used for management (which include change release
financial reporting. in production environment are compliant to
the defined procedures and segregation of
Accordingly, we have identified ‘IT systems environment is ensured), program
and controls’ as key audit matter because of development (which include review of data
the high level automation, significant migration activity), computer operations
number of systems being used by the (which includes testing of key controls
Mmanagement and the complexity of the IT pertaining to, backup, Batch processing
architecture and its impact on the financial (including interface testing), incident
reporting system. management and data centre security),
System interface controls. This included
testing that requests for access to systems
were appropriately logged, reviewed, and
authorized.

|

* In addition to the above, the design and
’ operating effectiveness of certain automated
controls, that were considered as  key
internal system controls over financial
reporting  were tested. Using various
techniques such as _inquiry, review of
documentation / record / reports,
observation, and re-performance.

*Tested compensating  controls  and
performed alternate procedures, where
necessary. In addition, understood where
relevant, changes made to the IT landscape
during the audit period.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
mprises the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
nformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially i i i i tements or our knowledge obtained in the

Page 3 of 6

Head Office: 602, Floor 6; R\aheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali RaTtepst. ookt » Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6238 0519
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune WWw.mska.in




MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is 3 material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 ‘The
Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’,

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the

of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained Up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves faijr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

5S0C N Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
%PV'A our information and according to the explanations given to us:
S
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 58 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.,

3. Inour opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act
and the rules thereunder.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 1 05047w
o
v

Toe ™

Tushar Kurani

Partner

Membership No. 118580
UDIN: 2311 8580BGXRQD9097

Mumbai
May 12, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023.

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i
(@)  A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Al the Property, Plant and Equipment and right of use assets were physically verified by the
management in the previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties, and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year. Accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly
returns / statements filed with such Banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
account,

iii.
(@)  The Company is involved in the Business of giving loans. Accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions in relation to investments
made, guarantees provided, securities given and / or grant of all loans and advances in the nature
of loans and guarantees are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
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(©) In respect of the [aforesaid] loans/ advances in nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Considering that the Company is a non-
banking financial company engaged in the business of micro finance lending [to small individual
borrowers], the borrower-wise details of the amount, due date for payment and extent of delay (that

recognized necessary provisions in accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) for Income Recognition and
Asset Classification (which has been disclosed by the Company in Note 7 to the financial statements),
the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of
interest, as applicable.

(d) In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety
days as at March 31 » 2023 1s Rs. 6,791.10 lakhs. in such instances, in our opinion, based on information
and explanations provided to Us, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for the recovery
of the principal amounts and the interest thereon. Refer Note 48 in the financial statements for
details of number of cases and the amount of principal and interest overdue as at March 31, 2023.

(e) The Company is involved in the Business of giving loans. Accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f)  According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans and / or

advances in the nature of loans during the year. These are not repayable on demand / have stipulated

the schedule for repayment of principal and interest, Hence, the requirements under paragraph

3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither, directly or
indirectly, granted any loan, or provided guarantee or security to any of its directors or to any other
person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of Section 185 of the
Act nor made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

vi. The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the

Company, details of statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2023 on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Nature of Amount | Amount

Name of Period to Forum where dispute
the dues Demanded Paid which the is pending
statute Rs. (in Rs. (in amount /
Lakhs) Lakhs) relates

Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal

Commissioner of Income
Tax(Appeals)

|
|

Commissioner of Income
| Tax (Appeals)

|

| Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals)

Income
Tax
Act,c1961

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not

ix.
(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures,
we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(€}  In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of
term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overail examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the financial

statements of the Company, we report th y has not taken any funds from an any entity
Or person on account of or to meet the o or joint ventures
(f)  According to the information and ex ions given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans duri held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate comp reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the
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X,

(@) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise
any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has made private placement of cumulative convertible preference
shares during the year and the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act have been
complied with. The amount raised has been used for the purposes for which they were raised.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit,

(b)  We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023, accordingly the
provisions stated in paragraph (xi}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year while determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xili.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.
(@) Inouropinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the year under audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 as a non deposit taking non-banking financial institution.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without any valid Certificate of
Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. 2
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(d)  The Group does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)
(d) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has incurred cash losses in the
current financial year amounting to Rs. 92,317.98 lakhs but has not incurred any cash losses during
the immediately preceding financial year,

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(@)  In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund
specified in schedule VIl of the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance second proviso to sub-Section (5) of Section 135 of the Act.

(b)  There are no ongoing projects and accordingly reporting under Clause 3(xx)(b) of order is not
applicable to the Company.

XXi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any Subsidiary,
Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For MS K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants aahday

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W 7»{3’(&‘&@“\«.
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Tushar Kurani ESi
Partner

Membership No. 118580
UDIN: 23118580BGXRQD9097

Mumbai
May 12, 2023
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Arohan Financial Services Limited on the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Arohan Financial
Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note™),

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent apptlicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error.
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047wW
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Tushar Kurani ‘l;{fv,,e\__. <
Partner LIS

Membership No. 118580
UDIN: 23118580BGXRQD9097

Mumbai
May 12, 2023
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Archan Financial Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 55,656.06 95,362.92
Other bank balances 5 37,800.09 35,372.38
Trade receivables 6 1,537.64 200.59
Loans 7 4,78,221.95 3,71,019.93
Investments 8 7,877.00 5.00
QOther financial assets 9 2,757.32 547.14
5,83,850.06 5,02,507.96
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 10 4,268.74 4,820.31
Deferred tax assets (net) 11 11,846.91 13,773.52
Property, plant and equipment 12 §30.80 400.71
Intangible assets under development 13 44.06 45.04
Other intangible assets 13 215.06 269.47
Right of use asset 14 490.05 393.43
Oiher non-financial assets 15 571.12 749.01
: 17,966.73 20,451.49
Total assets 6,01,816.79 5,22,959.45
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables
() Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises B -
(1) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Debt securities 16 30,084.77 28,338.42
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 3,80,836.33 3,41,078.35
Subordinated liabilities 18 42,327.83 43,309.37
Other financial liabilities 20 9,946.14 3,713.27
4,63,295.07 4,16,439.41
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 21 2,468.28 2,099.70
Other non-financial liabilities 22 2,250.92 2,072.25
4,719.21 4,171.95
Equity
Equity share capital 23 16,038.85 12,017.73
Other equity 24 1,18,763.66 90,330.36
1,33,802.51 1,02,348.09
Total liabilities and equity 6,01,816.79 5,22 959.45

Note 1 to 61 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 105047W
[+

Tu SLM/V/M/H

Tushar Kurani
Partner
Membership No. 118580

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directg{s of
Arohan Financial Services Limited |

mar N Nambiar  Vineet Charidra Rai
Director Director

72919) (DIN: 00606290)
kata Place : Kolkata

A SJW”/
\_——Anirudh Singh G Thakur  Milind R Nare
N Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Date: 12 May 2023



Arohan Financial Services Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ Jakhs unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Interest income

Dividend income

Fees and commission income

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments
Other operating income

Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax expense

Tax expense for earlier years

Total tax expenses

Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
(i) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
(i) Income tax relating to these items

Subtotal (A}

(B) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Fair valuation of financial assets

(ii) Income tax relating to these items

Subtotal (B)

Total other comprehensive income (A + B)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
Nominal value per share
Basic (%)

Diluted (%)

Note 1 to 61 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

31

32
33
34
35
36

38

39

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

93,096.90 85,872.70
E 3.50
10,209.69 4,172.35
3,586.49 :
52.30 124.02
1,06,945.38 90,172.57
2.154.14 1,870.03
1,09,099.52 92,042.60
46,864.42 40,176.34
19,264.99 13,566.80
24,614.80 24,039.10
476.24 586.07
8,883.71 8,380.19
1,00,104.16 83,748.50
8,995.36 8,294.10
1.98 8.93
2,014.95 2,178.62
(93.18) 11.52
1,923.73 2,199.07
7,071.63 6,095.03
(350.99) (223.42)
) 5.00
88.34 55.40
(262.65) (163.02)
(262.65) (163.02)
5.808.98 5.932,01
10.00 10.00
6.05 522
5.84 5.20

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even dae

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 105047W

achon 255

Tushar Kurani
Partner
Membership No. 118580

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arohan Financial Services Limited i

{umar N Nambiar
\._ Director
¥72819)

Place Kolkata

Mang{

An|rudh Smgh G Thakur
Company Secretary
Place: Kolkata

Date: 12 May 2023

/

s

NN
Vineet Chandra Rai
Director

(DIN: 00606290)
Place : Kolkata

wee
Milde4;

Chief Financial Officer
Place:; Kolkata
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless atherwise stated)

{A) Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax .

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization

Interest on lease liability (net)

Impairment on financial instruments

Impairment on trade receivables

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments

Interest income on unwinding of assigned portfolia
Adjustment of loan to ESOP trust '

Expense on employee stock option scheme

Effective interest rate adjustment far financial instruments (*)
Unwinding impact on security deposit

Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments
{Increase)/ decrease in assets
Loans
Trade receivables
Other financial assets
Other non-financial assets
Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities
Others financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities
Cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities
Income taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) .

(B) Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in fixed deposits
Purchase of investments
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

(C) Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including premium)
Proceeds from Issue of compulsorily convertible preference shares (including premium)
Share issue expenses
Proceeds from debt securities (*)
Repayment of debt securities (*)
Proceeds from borrawings (other than debt securities) (*)
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (%)
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities (*) -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities (*)
Payment of lease liabilities
Net cash generated/ (used in) financing activities {C})

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents: [Refer Note 4}

Cash on hand

Balances and deposits with banks

Cash and cash equivalents considered for cash flow

(*) Refer Note 19 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Methothas set out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

8,995.36 8,294.10
476.24 586.07
4578 53.09
19,117.55 13,566.80
147.44 -
(3,586.49) B
(294.45) (352.92)
E (24.31)
282.76 454.69
1,475.82 (2,310.11)
0.21 0,34
26,660.22 20,267.75
(1,26,319.57) 8,003.80
{1,484.49) (86.92)
1,675.25 862.65
173.19 614.67
6,138.36 {2,911.19)
17.60 87.77
178.67 (173.13)
{92,960.77) 26,665.40
642,79 (4,204.80)
{92,317.98) 22,460.60
(301.69) (97.76)
(2.427.71) {16.122.96)
(7,872.00) s
(34.41) (5.96)
(46.30) (70.72)
0.44 2.63
[10,681.67) {16,294.77)
5.65 12217
24,829.50 ,
(472.47) -
11,462.43 .
{9,940.00) (69,977.67)
6,44,169.00 4,67,025.59
(6.05,544.46) (4,45,766.13)
5 22,234.60
(1,000.00) S
{216.86) (243.22)
(39,706.86) (20,438.83)
95,362.92 1,15,801.75
55,656.06 95,352.92
36.05 55.57
55,620.01 95,307.35
55,656.06 95,362,92

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For M S K A & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105047Wo

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
an Financial Services Limited

Tu dhon Jonrt=-

Partner
Membership No. 118580

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2023

nirudh Singh G Thakur
Company Secretary
Place: Kotkata

Date: 12 May 2023

\%

Vineet Chandra Rai
Director

(DIN: 00606290)
Place : Kolkata

Milind R Nare
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata



Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1

2
0]

(i)

3

Corporate informatories

Arohan Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’) is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 1856. The Company has been registered as a
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC") with the Reserve Bank of India (‘the RBI" from 8 July 2009 and pursuant to the notification issued by the RBI for
classification of NBFCs as Non-Banking Finance Company — Micro Finance Institutions (NBFC-MFT), the Company's application for registration as an NBFC-
MF! was approved by the RBI on 10 January 2014. The Company has converted itself into a public limited company and changed its name to Arohan Financial
Services Limited and has received a fresh certificate of incorporation dated 25 May 2018.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing the livelihood promotion services such as micro-credit to socio-economically disadvantaged customers un-
reached by the formal banking systems. In addition to the core business of providing micro-credit, the company uses its distribution channel to provide certain
other financial products and services.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA') under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act)) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as
amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (as amended), the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified and
applicable) and other applicable guidelines issued by the RBIL.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 has been authorised and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 12 May 2023,

The Guidance Note an Division 11l - Schedule 11l to the Companies Act. 2013 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") has been followed
in so far as they are not inconsistent with any of these Directions.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the
financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are
measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies.

Significant accounting policies and key account estimates and judgements

a) Basis of preparation

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current)
and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in note 43. The financial statements have been prepared using the significant
accounting policies and measurement bases summarised as below. These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial
statements, except where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

b) Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are:

Busi model nent

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective.
This assessment includes judgement reflecting ali relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance
measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset were held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and accordingly praspective change to the classification of those assets are made.

Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs ta these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment of loan portfolio

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining an impairment allowance for loans and
advances. In estimating these cash flows, the Company makes judgments about the borrower's financial situation. These estimates are based on assumptions
about a number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.
Provisions

Provisions created in respect of a range of future obligations such as litigation. Some of the provisions involve significant judgment about the likely outcome of
various events and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions involves the exercise of management judgments about the ultimate
outcomes of the transactions. Payments that are expected to be incurred after more than one year are discounted at a rate, which reflects both current interest
rates and the risks specific to that provision.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected ulility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

¢) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. )

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies and key account estimates and judgements (cont'd)

c) Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) .
Subsequent measurement (depreclation method, useful lives and residual value)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part ‘C' of Schedule II, which is also the management's
estimates of useful lives of such assets.

Asset class Useful life
Office equipment 5years
Computer equipment 3 years
Computer Servers 6 Years
Motor Vehicle 8 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use till useful life or the date the asset is sold/ disposed, whichever is
earlier. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognised.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses incurred to acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets
which are not ready to its intended use are also shown under capital work-in-progress.

d) Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use.
Subsequent measurement {depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)
Intangible assets are amortised over a period of five years from the date when the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life (amortisation period) of
the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the
amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.
Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under development and are carried at cost.
Cost includes development cost, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure necessary o create, produce and repair the asset to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. These are recoanised as assets when the company demonstrate following recognition requirements:
a. The development costs can be measured reliably
b. The project is technically and commercially feasible
¢. The company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project
d. The company has the ability to use or sell such intangible asset
e. The asset will generate probable future economic benefits.

e) Revenue recognition
Interest and processing fee income on loans
Interest and processing fee income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Additional overdue interest/ penal charges, if
any, are recognised only when it is reasonable certain that the ultimate collection will be made.
Income from assignment transactions
Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when the related loan assets are de-recognised. Interest
income is also recognised on carrying value of assets over the remaining period of such assets.
Commission income
Income from business carrespondent and cross sale services is recognised as and when the services are rendered as per agreed terms and conditions of the
contract.
Interest on fixed deposits
Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized in time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.
Miscellaneous income
All other income is recognised on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realisation/ collection.

f) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost consists of interest and other cost that the Gompany incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

g) Taxation
a) Current tax: Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Gurrent tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in other equity. Management periodically evaluates positions.taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation an establishes pravisions where appropriate.




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies and key account estimates and judgements (cont'd)

g) Taxation (cont'd)
b) Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised either in OCI or in other equity.
Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax, current tax and tax expense for earlier years, except to the
extent it recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

h) Employee henefits
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as under:
Defined contribution plans
The company has a defined contribution plans like provident fund and employees state insurance scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of
these plans are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.
Defined benefit plans
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity and pension fund, defined benefit plan covering eligitle employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the
amount that an employee will receive is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for any benefits
remains with the Company, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/ losses resulting from re-measurements of the
liability/asset are included in other comprehensive income,
Other long-term employee benefits
The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The liability in respect of
accumulating compensated absences Is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to Statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gain or losses are determined.

i) Share based payments
The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Schemes to be administered through a Trust. The fair value of options granted under Employee
Stock Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in other equity.
The total amount o be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options. The fotal expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
Statement of Profit and Loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
Treasury shares are presented as a deduction from equity. The original cost of treasury shares and the proceeds of any subsequent sale are presented as
movements in equity.

j) Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use.
If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at
the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amount.

k) Impairment of financial assets
The expected credit loss (ECL) allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL),
unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss
(12mECL). The Company’s policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Loan assets
The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
- Stage 1 (0-30 days) includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
« Stage 2 (31-90 days) includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that do not have objective evidence of
impairment.
« Stage 3 (more than 90 days) includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date,

The ECL is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Prabability of
Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obfigation, either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD represents the Company's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support

Exposure at Default (EAD)

EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default.

Management overlay is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime ECL. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and
reviewed on an ongoing basis.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies and key account estimates and Judgements (cont'd)

k) Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)
Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of ind AS 108, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life
of trade receivables.
Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.
When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.
Write off
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. However financial assets that are
written off could still be enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any subsequent
recoveries made are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

I} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments (certificate of deposits and
commercial paper) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

m) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be
made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to
their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:

« Possible obligations which wili be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
« Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable

estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed.

n) Leases
The Company as a lessee
The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of
a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves
the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for ali lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior
to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset.
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or
a termination option.

o) Financial instruments
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are
measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below.
Non-derivative financial assets:
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cashflows, and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium con acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Nor-performing financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the financial statement.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

3 Significant accounting policies and key account estimates and judgements (cont'd)
o) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if both the following conditions are met:
(a) The asset is held within a business modei whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
(b} The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.
FVOCI instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income are
recognised in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
Investments
Investment in mutual funds and security receipts are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
Investment in equity are measured at fair value to other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
De-recognition of financial assets
Financial assets or a part of financial asset are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also de-recognise
the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there are a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

p) Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable
taxes) by the weighted'average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost associated) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q) Segment reporting
The Company identifies segment basis of the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for which separate
financial information is available and for which operating profitloss amounts are regulary reviewed by the CODM (‘chief operating decision maker’) and in
assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue,
segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabifities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the
segment.

r) Government grants
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to
them, and (i} the grant/subsidy will be received.
Grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in profit or loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs, which they are intended to compensate.

s) Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (Z), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency amounts at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate, Non- monetary
items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

t) Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is
adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

u) Dividend payment
Interim dividend declared to equity/ preference shareholders, if any, is recognized as liability in the period in which the said dividend is declared by the Board of
Directors. Final dividend declared, if any, is recognized in the year in which the said dividend is approved by the Shareholders. Dividend payable is recognized
directly in equity.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents 34 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 36.05 55.57
Balances with banks
-Balance with banks in current accounts 1,6498.67 9,747.32
-Deposits for original maturity of less than 3 maonths 54,070.34 85,660.03
Total 55,656.06 95,362.92
As at As at
Note 5: Other bank balances 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than than 3 months 2,479.40 1.02
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 manths 2,774.19 -
Balance with banks and financial institutions to the extent held as margin money deposits against borrowings and guarantees
[Refer Note (a) below]
- with maturity less than 3 months 2,032,37 5,020.14
- with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 11,889.22 7,622.19
- with maturity more than 12 months 18,614.91 22,729.03
Total 37,800.09 35,372.38
(a) The deposits are under lien as security against term loans and overdraft facilities availed, assets securitised, etc as below.
Particulars it A at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Term loans from banks and financial institutions 18,140.32 20,957.61
Overdraft facilities 45.29 53.75
Collateral against securitisations 14,161.49 14,170.19
Secured non convertible debenture 199.40 189.81
Total 32,646.50 35,371.36
! . As at As at
Note 6: Trade receivables (at amortised cost) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Considered good - unsecured (*) 1,5637.64 200.59
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired (*) 147.44 -
1,685.08 200.59
Less: Impairment allowance (147.44) -
Total - Net 1,537.64 200.59
(*) Unbilled dues are not included [Refer note 9].
Trade receivable outstanding from the due date of payment/ date of transaction
As at March 31, 2023
Trade receivables aging schedule R Ey clmerne 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months year
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered goad (#) 1,537.64 - - - 1,537.64
(il) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired (#) 144.16 3.28 N N = 147.44
(iii) Disputed trade receivables — considered good o o B e O -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired = £ = - = -
Total 1,681.80 3.28 - - - 1,685.08
As at March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables aging schedule Cessithanlel fRmohnsil 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months year
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good (#) 200.58 = = - = 200.59
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired S o - = e -
(iii) Disputed trade receivables ~ considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables ~ credit impaired = 5 = E = -
Total 200.59 - - - - 200.59

(#) Outstanding are from the due date of payment. Where no due date of payment specified in that case ageing is done from the transaction date.




Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in T lakhs unless aotherwise stated)

As at 31 March 2023

As

at 31 March 2022

At fair value At fair value
Note 7: Loans Atamortised through other T At amortised through other
F otal . Total
cost comprehensive cost| comprehensive
Income income
Term loans
Secured Loans 854.79 - 854.79 9,405.09 - 9,405.09
Unsecured Loans 5,05.831.33 - 5,05,831.33 4,05431.73 - 4,05431.73
Total - Gross 5,06,686.12 - 5,06,686.12 4,14,836.82 - 4,14,836.82
Less: Impairment allowance (#) (28,464.17) - (28.464.17) (43,816.89] (43.816.89]
Total - Net 4,78,221.95 - 4,78,221.95 3,71,019.93 - 3,71,019.93
(i} Secured by tangible assets (*) 854,79 - 854.78 9,405.09 - 9,405.08
(i) Secured by intangible assets - - - - - -
{iiiy Covered by Bank/ Government Guarantees - - - - - -
(iv) Unsecured 5.05,831.33 - 5,05,831.33 4,05431.73 - 4,05431.73
Total - Gross 5,06,686.12 - 5,06,686,12 4,14,836.82 - 4,14,836.82
Less: Impairment allowance #) (28,464.17) - (28,464.17) (43,816.89) - {43,816.89)
Total - Net 4,78,221.95 - 4,78,221.95 3,71,019.93 - 3,71,019.93
Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - - - = - .
(i) Others 5.06,686.12 - 5,06,686.12 4,14.836.82 - 4,14,836.82
Total - Gross 5,06,686.12 - 5,06,686.12 4,14,836.82 - 4,14,836.82
Less: Impairment allowance (#) (28,464.17) - (28,464.17) (43,816.89) . (43,816.89)
Total - Net 4,78,221.95 - 4,78,221.95 3.71,019.93 - 3,71.019.93
{* Includes advance against book debts
@#) Impairment allowance includes management overlay of 5,517.37 lakhs as on March 31, 2023 {March 31, 2022 : ¥719.81 lakhs).
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
At fair value Atifainvalue At fair value Ll
Note 8: Investments through profit through otr_ner Total | through profit through ott}er Total
comprehensive comprehensive
and loss . and loss
income Income
Unquoted equity instruments
Alpha Micro Finance Consultant Private Limited (50,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 - 5.00 5.00 = 5.00 5.00
each, fully paid-up)
Security receipts
Security receipts from Phoenix (8,00,000 security receipts of face value ¥ 984/- 7,872.00 - 7,872.00 - - -
each)
Total - Gross 7.872.00 5.00 7,877.00 5 5.00 5,00
Less: Impairment allowance - - - - - -
Total - Net 7,872.00 5.00 7,877.00 - 5.00 5.00
Investments in India 7.872.00 5.00 7,877.00 - 5.00 5.00
Investments outside India - = B = = 5
Total - Gross 7,872.00 5.00 7,877.00 - 5.00 5.00
Less: Impairment allowance - — - - - =
Total - Net 7,872.00 5.00 7,877.00 - 5.00 5.00
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Arohan Financlal Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Other financial assets

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good

INote 11: Deferred tax assets (net)

31 March 2023

Security deposits 261.81 249.29
Receivable on assigned loans 2,258.72 8.28
Insurance receivables 85.13 105.43
Unbilled receivables 87.04 40.31
Others 148.75 220.36
2,842.45 623.65
Less: Impairment allowance on insurance receivables (85.13) (76.51)
Total 2,757.32 547.14
) As at As at
Noteill: GurentiseXaasety: nof) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance tax and TDS (net of provisions) 4,268.74 4,820.31
Total 4,268.74 4,820.31
As at As at

31 March 2022

Deferred tax asset arlsing on account of:

impairment loss allowance on loan assets 6,586.17 10,217.96
Provision for employee bensfits 621.20 528,43
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 539.78 384.38
Fair valuation of financial instruments through othar comprehensive income - 0.17
Provision for expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis 27.15 2715
Other adjustments 4,341.63 2,588.46
12,115.93 13,748.55
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
Difference in written down value as per books and as per income tax act (32.19) (26.97)
Other adjustments 301.21 -
269.02 (26.97)
Net deferred tax assets 11,846.91 13,773.52
Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2023
As at| Statement of Other| As at
Particulars 01 April 2022| profit and loss comprehensive 31 March 2023
__income}
Deferred tax assets for deductable temporary differences on:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets 10,217.96 (3,631.79) - 6,586.17
Provision for employee benefits 528.43 4.43 88.34 621.20
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 384.38 155.40 - 539.78
Fair valuation of financial instruments through other comprehensive income 0.17 (0.17) - -
Provision for expense aliowed for tax purpose on payment basis 27.15 - - 27.15
Other adjustments 2,588B.46 1.753.17 - 4,341.63
Total 13,746.55 1,718.96) 88.34 12,115.93
Deferred tax llabilities for taxable temporary differences on:
Difference in written down value as per books and as per income tax act (26.97) (5.22) - (32.19)
Other ad]ustments - 301.21 - 301.21
Total (26.97) 295.99 - 269.02
Deferred tax assets (net) 13,773.52 (2,014.95) 88.34 11,846.91
Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2022
Other
As at| Statement of As at
Particulars 01 Aprll 2021| profit and loss °°"'p'°';°“""° 31 March 2022
Deferred tax ts for deductable temporary differences on:
Impairment loss allowance on loan assets 15,435.56 (5,217.60) - 10,217.96
Provision for employee benefits 446.16 25.61 56.66 528.43
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 3.65 380.73 = 384.38
Fair valuation of financial instruments through other comprehensive income 1.43 - (1.26) 0.17
Provision for expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis 28.65 (1.50) - 27.15
Other adjustments 15.40 2,573.06 - 2,588.46
Total 15,930.85 (2,239.70) 55.40 13,748.55
Deferred tax liabilitles for taxable temporary differences on:
Difference in written down value as per books and as per income tax act 1.46 (28.43) - (26.97)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 0.01 (0.01) - -
Other adjustments 32.64 (32.64) -
Total 34.11 (61.08) - (26.97)
Deferred tax assets (net) 15,896.74 (2,178.62) 55.40 13,773.52




Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Furniture

Computer

Office

Note 12: Property, piant and equipment and fixtures | and accessories equipment sathl
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 311.40 702.32 230.34 1,244.06
Additions for the year 27.24 36.88 33.64 97.76
Disposals for the year 0.67 13.10 9.90 23.67
Balance as at March 31, 2022 337.97 726.10 254.08 1,318.15
Additions for the year 55.40 189.90 56.39 301.69
Disposals for the year - 10.20 2.86 13.06
Balance as at March, 31 2023 393.37 905.80 307.61 1,606.78
Accumulated depreciation
Up to March 31, 2021 94.80 523.27 123.71 741.78
Depreciation charge for the year 39.15 110.51 47.04 196.70
Adjustment on account of disposal 0.67 12.80 7.57 21.04
Up to March 31, 2022 133.28 620.98 163.18 917.44
Depreciation charge for the year - 37.45 85.27 48.44 171.16
Adjustment on account of disposal - 10.21 2.41 12.62
Up to March 31, 2023 170.73 696.04 209.21 1,075.98
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2022 204.69 105.12 90.90 400.71
Balance as at March, 31 2023 222.64 209.76 98.39 530.80
Refer note 58 on contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets
Note 13 : Intangible assets Under Others

development
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 52.55 925.85
Additions for the year 70.72 84.19
Disposals for the year 78.23 -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 45,04 1,010.04
Additions for the year 45.30 81.68
Disposals for the year 47.28 -
Balance as at March, 31 2023 44.06 1,091.73
Accumulated amortisation
Up to March 31, 2021 - 540.39
Amortisation charge for the year - 200.18
Adjustment on account of disposal - -
Up to March 31, 2022 - 740.57
Amortisation charge for the year - 136.11
Adjustment on account of disposal - -
Up to March 31, 2023 - 876.68
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2022 45.04 269.47
Balance as at March, 31 2023 44.06 215.05
Refer note 58 on contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 13 : Intangible assets {cont'd)

Ageing schedule of intangible assets under development

As at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Note 15: Other non-financial assets

jntangible asstxundeg development Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years ot
Projects in progress 44.06 - - - 44.06
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 44,06 - - - 44.06
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible assets under development Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 45,04 - - - 45,04
Projects temporarily suspended - N - N -
Total 45,04 - - - 45.04
There are no continuing projects where completion date are overdue or cost of project exceeded compared to original plan
Note 14 : Right of use assets Right of use
assets

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 884.06
Additions for the year 84.36
Disposals for the year 142.27
Balance as at March 31, 2022 826.15
Additions for the year 269,38
Disposals for the year 7.06
Balance as at March, 31 2023 1,088.47
Accumulated depreciation
Up to March 31, 2021 377.30
Depreciation for the year 189.19
Adjustment on account of disposal 133.77
Up to March 31, 2022 432.72
Depreciation for the year 168.97
Adjustment on account of disposal 3.27
Up to March, 31 2023 598.42
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2022 303.43
Balance as at March, 31 2023 490.05

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

{Measured at amortised cost)

Prepaid expenses 263.24 265.34
Advances to employees 189.93 214,86
Balances with government authorities 19.97 112.51
Advance against expenses 69.14 145.62
Others 28.84 10.68
Total 571.12 749.01




Arohan Financlal Servicas Limited
Summary of sianificant licles and other y Information for the year anded 31 March 2023
{All amounts In ¥ takhs unless otherwise stated)}

As at As at
D 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Measured af amortised cost)
Non convertible debentures (secured) 30,084.77 28,338.42
Totat 30,084.77 28,338.42
Debt securities in India 30,084.77 28,338.42
Debt sacurities outside Indla 0 =
Total 30,084.77 28,338.42

(#) Terms of repayment given in the repayment schedule
Non convertible debentures (*NCDs") Issued by the Company are secured by way of an exclusive charge on identified recelvables to the extent of at least 100% of outstanding secured NCDs and pursuant to the terms
of respective Information memorandum.

Other terms and conditions:
(~Jther terms and eoneion:

Particulars Repayment Schedule a1 erchgt')z.; 31 Ma rchg;;;
10.50% Indlan Bank (Face Value T10 lakhs) - no. of units Nil (March 31, 2022 - 250 units) Bullet repayment in May 2022 N 2,697.52
10.40% Punjab National Bank (Face Value €10 lakhs) - no. of units Nil (March 31, 2022 - 250 units)  |Bullet repayment in May 2022. - 2,527.03
10.45% Bank of Baroda (Face Value 10 lakhs) - no. of units Nil (March 31, 2022 - 1,500 units) Four equal instalments on August 2021, November 2021, February - 3,791.73
2022 and May 2022.
11.00% Bank of India (Face Value £10 lakhs) - no. of units 250 (March 31, 2022 - 250 units) Bullet repayment in June, 2023 2,713.11 2,701.89
11.50% Indian Bank (Facs Value 10 lakhs) - no. of units 250 {March 31, 2022 - 250 units) Bullet Repayment in July 2023 2,705.70 2,606.18
11.00% Bank of Baroda (Face Value 210 lakhs) - no, of units 250 (March 31, 2022 - 250 units) Three annual instalment on July 2021, July 2022 and July 2023. 854.21 1,694.50
11.86% Blue Orchard Microfinance Fund (Face Value €10 lakhs) - no. of units - 1,150 (March 31, |Bullet repayment in July 2027 11,843.91 -
2022 - nil units)
12.06% Japanese ASEAN Women Empowerment Fund (Face Value %10 lakhs) - no. of units - 650 [Repayment in three instaiments on June 2023, December 2023 and 6,717.22 6,717.22
{March 31, 2022 - 650 units) June 2024,
10.09% CDC Group (Face Value T10 lakhs) - no. of units - 600 {March 31, 2022 - 600 units) Redeemed on a pro rata basis and shall be fully redeemed by 5,250.62 5,602.34
March 2025.
Total 30,084.77 28,338.42
Note 17: Borrowings (other than debt securities) - Mmh:;z'; st Mnrch:t‘lzlzl
(Msasured at amortised cost)
(Secured)
(a) Term loans [refer note (f) below] i
Term loan from banks 2,186,074 41 1,27,561.53
Term loan from financial Institutions 91,648.82 94,339.68
Term Loan from related party 892.80 -
(b) Loans repayable on demand
Cash credit from banks [refer nots (i) below] 90.42 9,349.54
(c) Liabliity against securitisation frefer note (iil) below] 72,229.88 1,08,827.62
Total 3,80,936.33 3,41,078.35
Borrowings In India 3,80,936.33 3,41,078.35
'Bo»rmwlngs outside Indla = -
Total 3,80,936.33 3,41,078.35

{#) Terms of repayment given In the repayment schedule

Nature of Security:

(i) All tarm loans fram banks and financlal institutions are secured by way of first and exclusive charge, both present & future, over the eligible designated curent assets, eliglble designated book debts, loan instaiments,
recelvables and undertying assets arising out of finance of the Company.

(i) Cash credit faclities and working capital demand loans from banks are socured by way of first and exclusive charge, both present & future, over the eligible designated current assets, eligible designated book debts,
loan instalments, receivables and underlying assets arising out of finance af the Company.

(iii) Liabilities against securitisation represents amounts recaived in respect of securitisation transactions (net of repayments & investment therein) as these transactions do not mest the d ition criteria specified
under Ind AS 109. These are secured by way of hypothecation of designated assets on finance receivables.




Arohan Financial Services Limited

|Particutars

Summary of significant accounting policies and other 1 y information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
. o T s As at As at
Note 18: Subordinated liabilities 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Measured at amortised cost)
{Unsecured)
Non-convertible debentures 32,242.61 33,238.59
Term loans from banks 7,580.47 7,570.57
Term loans from financial institution 2,504.75 2,500.21
Total 42,327.83 43,309.37
Subordinated liabilities in India 42,327.83 43,309.37
Subordinated liabiliies outside India = -
Totat 42,327.83 43,309.37
(#) Terms of repayment given in the repayment schedule
Details of subordinated liabilities
—=-ais of subordinated liabilities
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(a) Term loans from banks (unsecured)

Term loan from banks 7,580.47 7.570.57
Term Loan from financial institutions 2,504.75 2,500.21
Subtotal 10,085.22 10,070.78
{b) Non-convertible debentures (unsecured)
14.25% IFMR Capital Finance Private Limited (Face Value 10 lakhs) nil debentures maturing in September 2022 (March 31, 2022 - 100 units) - 1,073.07
13.50% Northemn Arc Capital Limited (Face Value Z10 lakhs) 650 debentures; maturing in April 2025 (March 31, 2022 - 650 units) 6,492.38 6,470.61
12.85% Karvy Capital Limited (Face Value 210 each) 2,50,00,000 debentures, maturing in October 2026 (March 31, 2022 - 2,50,00,000 units) 2,459.40 2,447.22
13.50% Northern Arc Capital Limited {Face Value 210 each) 3,50,00,000 debentures; maturing in September 2025 (March 31, 2022 - 3,50,00,000 units) 3,483.54 3,485.84
13.65% Piramal Structured Credit Opportunity Fund (Face Value ¥100 lakhs) 200 debentures; maturing in June 2027 (March 31, 2022 - 200 units) 19,807.29 19,761.85
Subtotal 32,242.61 33,238.59
Total (a+b) - 42,327.83 43,309.37
Note 19 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
Debt Borrowings Subordinated
|Particulars securities| (other than degt) liabilities Total
As on March 31, 2021 1,00,735.92 3,19,775.64 21,008.31 4,41,519.87
Cash flows:
Proceeds - 4,67,025.59 22,234.59 4,89,260.18
Repayment (69,977.67) (4,45,766.13) . (5,15,743.80)
Non cash:
Amortisation of upfront fees and interest accrual {2,419.83) 43.25 66.47 (2,310.11)
As on March 31, 2022 28,338.42 3,41,078.35 43,309,37 4,12,726.14
Cash flaws:
Proceeds 11,462.43 6,44,169.00 - 6,55,631.43
Repayment (8,940.00) (6,05,544.46) (1,000.00) (6,16,484.46)
Non cash:
Amartisation of upfront fees and interest accrual 223.92 1,233.44 18.46 1,475.82
As on March 31, 2023 30,084.77 3,80,936.33 42,327.83 4,53,348.,93
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Other financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(Measured at amortised cost)

Payable towards assignment transactions 5,567.49 | 50.66
Employees dues 2,368.26 1,724.57
Lease liabilities 545,33 450.82
Liability for expenses 140.05 128.97
Other payables 1,325.01 1,358.25
Total 9,946.14 3,713.27
. 3 " As at As at
b S 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity 1,368.70 959.25
Provision for pension fund 35.31 168.73
Provision for compensated absences 1,064.28 971.72
Total 2,468.29 2,099.70
(*) Refer note 37 on actuarial valuation
R As at As at
Note 22: Other non-financial liabilities 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues 797.39 497.83
Expenses payable 1,181.29 1,018.11
Advance from customers 90.35 477.88
Others 181.89 80.42
Total 2,250.92 2,072.25
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 23: Share capital As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised share capital (*)

Equity shares of 10 each 18,00,00,000 18,000.00 13,50,00,000 13,500.00

Compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥ 10 each 4.50.00,000 4,500.00 2,50,00,000 2.500,00

Balance at the end of the year 22,50,00,000 22,500.00 16,00,00,000 16,000.00

(*) The shareholders of the Company at their extraordinary general meeting held on November 18, 2022 had approved the increase of authorised share capital of the Company.

The shareholders of the Company at their extraordinary general meeting held on March 29, 2023 had approved the reclassification of authorised share capital of the Company to
14,50,00,000 equity shares and 8,00,00,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares, the Company has done necessary filing and is awating the approval from Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA).

(A) Equlty shares capiltal

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity shares
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
At the beginning of the year 12,01,77,303 12,017.73 12,01,77,303 12,017.73
Additions during the year [*) 10,00.000 100.00 - -
Balance at the end of the year 12,11,77,303 12,117.73 12,01,77,303 12,017.73
" 0 . As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
{*) Additions made in equity shares during the year —Number ~ | Amount | Number | Amount
Archan ESOP Trust 10,00.000 100.00 - -
Total additions during the year . 10,00,000 100.00
{a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares issued to ESOP Trust outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Reconclllation of equity share capltal Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 33,15,395 331.54 34,14,524 34145
Add: Shares issued to ESOP trust (*) 10,00,000 1,635.40 - 5
Less: Allotted to employses during the period (**) 17,280 5,65 99,129 9.91
Outstanding at the end of the year 42,98,115 1,865.29 33,15,395 331.54

(*) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has issued 10,00,000 (March 31, 2022 : Nil) equity shares of 10.00 sach under the Arohan ESOP plan 2021 (grant 2022)
aggregating to ¥1,539.40 lakhs (including premium).

(**) During the year ended March 31, 2023, Archan ESOP Trust has ftransferred 17,280 equity shares at ¥32.69/- to Mr. Harshvardhan patnaik under ESOP 2017 schemes of Arohan
Financial Services Limited (March 31, 2022: Arohan ESOP Trust has transferred 30,000 equity shares at ¥84.70/-, 10,000 shares at ¥130/- to Mr. Arvind Murarka, 33,254 shares at ¥130.00/-
& 15,200 shares at ¥162.80/- to Mr. Sirish Panda and and 6,675 shares at ¥162.80/- & 4,000 shares at ¥170.00/- to Mr. Anirban Sinha under various ESOP schemes of Arohan Financial
Services Limited) .

{b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian rupees, if any. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing general meeting. During the financial year the
Company has not proposed/ declared any dividend on equity shares except on compulsorily convertible preference shares.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining ts of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) No additional shares were allotied as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares or pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash during the financial year. Further, none of the
shares were bought back by the Company during the financial year.

(d) Shareholding of promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at 31 March 2023 As’at 31 March 2022 % change
Promoter name No, of shares | % of total shares | No. of shares | % of total shares | during the year
1. Aavishkaar Vanture Management Services Private Limited 2,40,95,182 19.88% 2,47,63,774 2061% {0.72%)
2, Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited 1,64,72,146 13.58% 1,64,72,146 13.71% (0.11%)

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number % Number %
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited 2,40,95,182 19.88% 2/47,63,774 20.61%
Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company Il Limited 1,85,39,529 15.30% 1,85,39,529 15.43%
Tano India Private Equity Fund 1l 1,66,87,029 13.77% 1,69,14,279 14.07%
Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited 1,64,72,146 13.59% 1,64,72,146 13.71%
Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund || 1,54,01,267 12.711% 1,54,01,267 12.82%
TR Capital Il Mauritius 97,118,722 8,02% 97,18,722 B8.09
(B) Compulsorily convertible preference shares
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up compulsoerily convertible prefarence shares
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of T 10 each
At the beginning of the year S o o -
Additions during the year [*] i 29211177 292112 - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,92,11,177 2,921.12 - -
{**) Additions made in compulsorily convertible preference shares during the year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

: Number Amount Number Amount |
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (TIAA) (#) 1,85,00,412 1,850.04 - -
Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappi] Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V. (FMO) (#) 1,07.10,765 1,071.08
Total additions during the year 2,92,11.177 292112 -

Note: Subsequent to the reporting date the Company have further allotted 77,89,648 compulsorily convertible preference shares of ¥10 each to Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij
Voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V, (FMO) at a price of ¥85 (including securities premium of ¥75 per share) aggregating to ¥6,621.20 Lakhs.

#) The Company proposes a dividend @ 0.001% on compulsory convertible preference shares which is recommended by the Board of Directors for approval by the Shareholders in the
ensuring Annual General meeting.




Arohan Financlal Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwlise stated)

Terms and rights attached to Compulsorily convertible preference shares:

The Company has only one class of Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) which shall rank pari-passu with other preference shares. The CCPS shall cany a dividend of 0.001%
payable annually. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The holder of CCPS shall not be entitled to any voting rights in the Company. The conversion of the CCPS into equity shares of the Company shall be triggered and
the CCPS shall be converted into equity shares, in case of (i) Scenario 1, in no event later than 7 (seven) days from the date on which the applicable conditions sst out in Scenario 1 below
are satisfied (“Scenarlo 1 Trigger Date”); (ii) Scenario 2, within 30 (thirty) days from the date on which the applicable conditions set out in Scenario 2 below are satisfied; and (iii) Scenario 3,
within 7 (seven) days from March 31, 2024, at such conversion price and on such terms as set out below:

1. Scenario 1: Occurrence of the Full Equity Infusion that includes a Qualified Investment Raise (as defined below) ata priced round/ pre-determined valuation for the Company, by March 31,
2024,

2. Scenario 2: Occurrance of the Full Equity Infusion without the Qualified Investment Raise (as defined below) by Mareh 31, 2024; and

3. Scenario 3: Full Equity Infusion not having occurred by March 31, 2024.

“Qualified Investment Raise” shall mean a single extemal investment (that could inciude a secondary purchase of securities of the Company from its existing shareholders) from not more
than 1 (one) external institutional investor (along with its affiiates) of an aggregate amount that Is the INR equivalent of USD 25 million (calculated at the Exchange Rate) or more into the
Company at a priced round/ pre-determined valuation for the Company, by March 31, 2024.

Conversion Terms:

1. Upon occurrence of Scenario 1, the CCPS shall be compulsority converted into such number of equity shares of the Company so as to provide an extended internal rate of return (XIRR) of
25% per annum (twenty five percent per annum) calculated in INR from the date of the infusion of the investment amount and until the Scenario 1 Trigger Date (“Scenario 1 Conversion
Price”). Provided that, the conversion of the CCPS shall be subject to a minimum pre-money valuation floor of 21,500 crores and a maximum pre-money valuation cap of ¥2,000 crores.

2. Upon occurrence of Scenario 2, the CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares at the higher of: (i} pre-money valuation of ¥1,500 crores; or (ii) 1.8x of the book value of the
Company as of March 31, 2023 (which shall be calculated by excluding any equity raise undertaken by the Company during FY22-23, but Including the Impact from proceeds recsived
pursuant to ‘Assam write-back until September 30, 2023, tax affected’ minus adjustments required pursuant to ‘Deloitte’s analysis’ as of March 31, 2023), subject to a maximum pre-money
valuation cap of ¥2,000 crores (“Scenario 2 Conversion Price”).

3. Upon occumence of Scenario 3, subject to applicable law, the CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares of the Company at the floor of 1x of the book value of the Company
as of Septsmber 30, 2022, as certified by the statutory auditor of the Company (including a confirmation on the ECL amount by the statutory auditor) ("Scenario 3 Conversion Price”).

As at As at
o A Ot a 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Securities premium 93,917.23 71,037.15
Statutory reserves 9,439.12 8,024.79
Retained eamings 20,935.40 15,540.75
General reserves 80.27 80.27
Share option outstanding account 1,43307 1,155.08
Treasury shares (7,041.43) (5,507.68)
Other comprehensive income o -
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income = =
Changes in fair value of loan assets = -
Total 1,18,763.66 90,330.36

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Securities premium .

The securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. This amount can be utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act 2013.

Statutory reserves

This reserve is created as per the provision of section 45(IC) of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934. An amount equal to 20% of profits after tax is transfarred to this reserve every
year. This is a restricted reserve and any appropriation from this reserve can only be made after prior approval from RBI.

Retained earnings

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the financial statements of the Company and also considering the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety. Retained earnings Is a free reserve, retained from company’s profits to meet
future obligations.

General reserves

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit to general reserve before declaring dividend pursuant to the provision of erstwhile Companies Act.

Share based payment reserve

The reserve is used to recognised the fair value of the options issued to the employees of the Company under its stock option plan.

Treasury shares

The Company has created ESOP trust for providing ESOP to its employees. The Company treats ESOP trust as its extension and share held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares.
Own equity instrument that are re-acquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.

QOther comprehensive income

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the fair valuation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the fair valuation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Changes in fair value of loan assets

This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the fair valuation of loan assets classified under business model of hold and hold to collact.




Archan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31‘March 2023

(All amaunts in ¥ |lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Employee stock option scheme ('ESOP Scheme')

Archan ESOP Trust (ESOP Trust') was formed on March 19, 2010 to promate participation of the eligible employees of the Company in the ownership and growth of the Company and to canfer on them certain welfare benefits
through the implementation of the welfare schemes. Pursuant 1o the shareholders' approval in the meeting held on March 15, 2010 and April 27, 2018 (empowering the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee
{NRC) to take any further decisions with regard to the ESOP schemes), the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee (NRC) has been authorized to issue employee stock options, that are exercisable into not more

than 53,00,000 equity shares of the Company ta eligible employees and has extended interest free loan to ESOP Trust under the Scheme to

Company under such the Scheme.”

Presently, stock options have been granted or shares have been issued under the fallowing scheme:

A, ESOP 2017

B. ESOP 2018 (grant 2018)
C. ESOP 2018 (grant 2018)
D. ESOP 2018 (grant 2020)
E. ESOP 2021 (grant 2021)
F. ESOP 2021 (grant 2022)

{i] Employee stock option schemes:

pravide financial assistance to its employees to purchase equity shares of the

2, Board may|vesting

2. Board may

certain  performance

a ESOP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2021 ESOP 2021
fadticulars ESOP2097| o rant 2018) {grant 2019) {grant 2020) (Grant 21} {Grant 22)
Date of Grant 29-Aug-17 16-May-18 16-May-18 04-Aug-20 05-Jun-21 18-Aug-22
Date of Board approval 19-May-17 27-Apr-18 15-May-18 26-Jun-20 04-Jup-21 11-May-22
Date of committee meeting where grant of options were approved 19-May-17 27-Apr-18 18-Feb-19 26-Jun-20 04-Jun-21 11-May-22
Date of shareholders® approval 29-Aug-17 15-May-18 18-Mar-19 03-Aug-20 08-Feb-21 11-Aug-22
Number of options granted 2,29,280 5,897,264 7,869,528 8,42,858 9,82,867 9,97,942
Method of settiement Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
Vesting conditions 1. Continued|1.  Continued|1, Continued|1. Confinued|1. Continued|1. Continued

I with I t employment  with|employment with the|employment with the|employment with the
the Company on|with the|the Company on|Company on relevant|Company on relevant|Company on relevant
relevant date of(Company on|relevant date of|date of vesting date of vesting date of vesting
vesting relevant date of [vesting 2. Board may specify|2. Board may specify|2. Board may specify

certain performance

certain  performance

specify certain(2. Board may|specify certain|criteria criteria criteria
performance specify certain|performance
criteria performance  |criteria

Vesting periad 12 months from|36 months from|36 months  from|36 months from dale|36 months from dale of|36 months from date
date of grant of|date of grantofidate of grant of|of grant of option grant of option of grant of option

| option option option

Exercise period For KMP and|[For KMP and[For KMP  and|For KMP and others:|For KMP and others: 10|For KMP and others:
others: 10 year|others: 10 year|others: 10 year|10 year from the date|year from the date of{10 year from the date

from the date of|from the date of|from the date of|of vesting vesting of vesting
vesting vesting vesting
(il Details of grant and exercise of such options mre as follows:
" ESOP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2021 ESOP 2021
P
articulars ESOP2017|  (grant 2018) {grant 2019) {arant 2020) (Grant 21) {Grant 22)
Number of options granted 2,289,280 5,97,264 7,69,528 B,42,858 9,82,867 9,897,942
Cutstanding number of options as on March 31. 2023 1,28,000 4,12,824 5,43,908 6,06,349 7.86.591 8,75.650
(i} The weighted average exercise price and remaining contractual |ife of the ESOP Scheme are as follows:
. T : As at As at
Employee stock option scheme {'ESOP Scheme') 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ESOP 2017
Exercise price 84.70 84.70
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) - -
ESOP 2018 (grant 2018)
Exercise price 130.00 130.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) - -
ESOP 208 (grant 2019)
Exercise price 162.80 162,80
Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) - 0.12
ESOP 2018 (grant 2020)
Exercise price 170.00 170.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life {in years) 0.35 1.35
ESOP 2021 (grant 2021)
Exercise price 210.00 210,00
Weighted average remaining contraclual life (in years) 1.18 2.18
ESOP 2021 (grant 2022)
Exercise price 153.94 -
|Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years) 2.39 .




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Y of signi ing p
(All amaunts in ¥ iakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25: Emplovee stock option scheme {'ESOP Scheme'} {cont'd)

licies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

A o . ESOP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOPF 2018 ESOP 2021 ESOP 2021
{iv) Reconciliation of stock options: ESOP 2017 {arant 2018) (grant 2018) (grant 2020) (grant 2021) (grant 2022)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 1,75,280 5,43,264 7.34,278 8,42,858 - -
Stock option issued during the year - - - - 9,82,867 -
Exercised and vested 30,000 43,2564 21,875 4,000 - -
Forfeited/ lapsed - 52,626 1,16,655 1.40,949 55,744 -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 1,45,280 4,47,384 5,95,748 6,97,909 9,27,123 -
Stack oplion issued during the period - - - - - 9,97,942
Exercised and vested 17.280 - - - - -
Forfeited/ lapsed - 34,560 51,840 91.560 140,532 122,292 |
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 1,28,000 4,12,824 543,908 6.06.345 7.86,591 8,75,650

{v) The Company has recognized share based payment expense of 2282.76 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥454.69 Lakhs} during the period as proportiohate cost.

{vi) Fallowing employees have received a grant in the reporting period of option amounting to 5% or more of total option granted:

|Name of Emplovee

Designation

Number of Options granted

Manoj Kurnar Narayan Nambiar
Milind Nare
Ranjan Das
Anirudh Singh G Thakur

Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Risk Officer
Campany Secretary

2,00,000
68,999
56,454
56,301

There are no identified employees who were granted options, during any particular year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

(vii) The fair value of the options granted is determined on the date of the grant using the “Black-Scholes option pricing model” with the following assumptions, as certified by an independent valuer.

3 ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 ESQP 2018 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2021 ESOP 2021
Particulars (grant 2018) (grant 2019) (grant 2020) (grant 2021) (grant 2022)
(A) Date of grant of options 29-Aug-17 16-May-18 16-May-13 04-Aug-20 05-Jun-21 18-Aug-22
(B) Fair market value of aption on the date of grant 14.71 37.61 49,53 56.83 75.94 47.26
(C) Exercise price 84.70 130.00 162.80 170.00 210.00 153.94
(D) Expected volatility (%) 35.95 34,25 38.02 47.60 46.31 51.08
(E) Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date - o =
(F) Expected option life (weig ge) 1.04 2.50 2.50 2.57 3,00 2.50
(G) Expecied dividends yield - - - - - -
\(H) Risk free interest rate (%) 8.07% 7.51% 6.75% 4.39% 4.95% 8.57%

Note: The expected volatility was determined based on histarical volatility data of the other comparable Company's shares listed on the Stock Exchange.




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended 31 March 2023

On Financial Assets

On financial assets

Note 26: Interest [ncome measured at fair measured at Total
value through OCI amortised cost
Interest on loans 91,059.35 91,059.35
Interest on deposits with banks [refer note (a) below] - 1,719.11 1,719.11
Interest income on unwinding of assigned portfolio - 294.45 294.45
Other interest Income - 23.99 23.99
Total N 93,096.90 93,096.90
Year ended 31 March 2022
On Financial Assets | On Financial Assets
Note 26: Interest Income (cont'd) measured at fair measured at Total
value through OCI Amortised Cost
Interest on Loans - 84,396.54 84,396.54
Interest on deposits with Banks [refer (a) below] - 1,095.37 1,095,37
Interest income on unwinding of assigned portfalio - 352,92 352.92
Other interest Income - 27.87 27.87
Total - 85,872.70 85,872.70
(a) Represents interest on margin money deposits placed to avail term foan from banks and financial institutions.
. Year ended Year ended
plote 27: BIVIderd Incoma 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dividend Income - 3.50
Total - 3.50
A e Year ended Year ended
Note 28: Fees and commission Income 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income from cross sale business 10,209.69 4,172.35
Total 10,209.69 4172.35
. . =i Year ended Year ended
Note 29: f
ote 29: Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gain on sale of loan portfolio through assignment 3,586.49 -
Total 3,586.49 -
ina | Year ended Year ended
Note 30: Other operating in e
& i g ‘ncom 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other operating income 52.30 124.02
Total 52.30 124.02
f Year ended Year ended
N 1: Oth
CLeo. QUerHcame 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income on deposits with banks 1,807.90 1,836.15
Miscellaneous income 346.24 33.88
Total 2,154.14 1,870.03
Year ended Year ended

Note 32: Finance costs

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(Measured at amortised cost)

Interest on debt securities 3,339.47 8,008.75
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities) 34,750.83 28,289.38
Interest on subordinated liabilities 7,305.37 2,868.82
Interest on leasing arrangements 58,70 54.50
Other interest expenses 1,409.05 954.89
Total 46,864.42 40,176.34
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in  lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. : o= & . Year ended Year ended
Note 33: Impairment on financial instruments (Amortised Cost) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impairment on loans (14,577.65) (24,959.65)
Impairment on trade receivables 147.44 -
Bad debt written off (net of recoveries) (*) 33,695.20 38,526.45
Total 19,264.99 13,566.80
(*) 3,949.17 lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥1,357.86 lakhs) of recoveries netted off with bad debt written off.
s Year ended Year ended
Note 34: Employee benefits expenses 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 21,585.98 17,892.00
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,170.43 2,102.71
Share based payments to employees 282.78 454.68
Staff welfare expenses 575.63 589.70
Total 24,614.80 21,039.10
- e Year ended Year ended
Note 35: Depreciation and amortization 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 171.16 196.70
Depreciation on right of use assets 168.97 189.19
Amortisation of intangible assets 136.11 200.18
Total 476.24 586.07
Year ended Year ended
e gl ki 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rent [Refer note §7] 1,286.03 1,110.51
Repairs and maintenance 1,230.65 873.38
Insurance 472.28 43B.28
Power and fuel 159.73 162.92
Rates and taxes 68.23 49.05
Office expenses 202.62 152.10
Membership and subscription 77.05 85.54
Office maintenance 346.83 253.04
Printing and stationery 238.82 327.79
Legal and professional expenses 1,453.13 1,904.70
Director's commission [Refer note 45] 68.13 65.40
Recruitment and induction expenses 171.02 93.97
Communication expenses 105.71 91.50
Travelling and conveyance 2,765.24 2,284.64
Payment to auditors [Refer note (a) below] 83.20 87.77
Corporate social responsibility expenses {Refer note 55] 21.83 68.67
Miscellaneous expenses 133.21 330.93
Total 8,883.71 8,380.19
Note (a) Payments to auditors (excluding applicable taxes)
Statutory audit including limited reviews 70.00 74.00
Tax audit {other than statutory auditors) 1.50 1.50
In other capacity
Other services 10.03 11.44
Reimbursement of expenses 1.67 0.83
83.20 87.77
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Employee benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 18 on Employee Benefit as under :

a) Defined contribution plans
Provident and other funds

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and other funds
which are defined contribution plans. The GCompany has no obligations other than this to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement

of Profit and Loss as they accrue.

. Year ended Year ended
particulas 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Employers contribution to provident and other fund 2,170.43 2,102.71

b) Defined benefit plans
(a) Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded
and the scheme is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC"). The liability of gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary increases

Investment risk

Actual salary increases will result in increase in the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary rate assumption in future
valuations will alsc increase the liability.

As plan is funded, assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate
assumed at the [ast valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount rate

Mortality & disability
Withdrawals

subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particul As at As at
oA 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation 2,334.71 1,803.19
Fair value of plan assets 966.01 843.94
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 1,368.70 959.25

(i} Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

" Year ended Year ended
fogticaiary 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 297.21 241.30
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation 56.80 46.18
Net impact on profit (before tax) 354.01 287.48
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income:

: Year ended Year ended
EgCuITe 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Actuarial losses recoanized in OCI 350.99 223.42

(iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

. As at As at

Partic

Siticliacs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 1,803.19 1,375.75
Current service cost 297.21 241.30
Interest cost 118.01 86.54
Benefits paid (234.69) (129.07)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption (71.00) (114.46)

Actuarial loss an arising from experience adjustment 421.99 343.13
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 2,334.71 1.803.19

(iv) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):

S As at As at
aanicslas 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Funds managed by LIC of India 100% 100%

(v) Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As 8l geiat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 843.94 42473
Interest income on plan assets 61.21 40.36
Employer's contribution 285,55 502,67
Benefits paid (234.69) (129.07)
Expected return on plan assets - 5.25
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 966.01 843.94
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Employee benefits (cont'd)

{vi) Actuarial assumptions

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Discounting rate 7.20% 7.00%
Future satary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 60
Withdrawal rate
upto 5 years of service 52% 52%
More than 5 years of service 1% 1%

|Weighted average duration (years) 11 16

Mortality rates as per Indian Assured Life Mortality (2006-08) ultimate

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these eventualities, the Actuary has

used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate table.
(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to ane of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

- Impact due to increase of 1% (311.08) (244.52)
- Impact due to decrease of 1% 389.71 307.35
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due to increase of 1% 382.68 301.17
- Impact due to decrease of 1% (311.72) (244.62)
Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not caiculated.
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation {discounted) 31 March ;;; 31 March‘ZLE;Zt
Year
0to 1 year 286.70 192.49
1to 2 year 131.69 146.47
2 1o 3 year 209.50 96.26
3 fo 4 year 85.50 176.82
4 to 5 year 116.51 70.69
5 year onwards 846.18 660.47
Total 1,676.08 1,343.20

(b) Pension Fund

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan. Family members of eligible deceased employee is entitled to pension as per the provisions of the Pension scheme. The

liability of pension is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary increases

Discount rate
Mortality & disability
Withdrawals

Actual salary increases will result in increase in the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary rate assumption in future
valuations will also increase the liability.

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Actual deaths cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities:

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

. As at As at
it lnrs 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022|
Present value of obligation 35.31 168.73
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 35.31 168.73

(ii) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost - 18.13
Past service cost - 145.45
Settlement credit (99.79) -
Net interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 292 7.02
Immediate recognition of {gains)/ losses (0.95) 5.23
Payment made during the year (35.60) (7.10)
Net impact on profit (before tax) (133.42) 168.73
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 37: Employee benefits (cont'd)

(ili) Movement In the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the bal sheet is as under:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 168.73 -
Current service cost (99.79) 163.58
Interest cost 2.92 7.02
Benefits paid (35.60) (7.10)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption (0.02) 5.23
Actuarial loss on arising from experience adjustment (0.93) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 35.31 168.73
(vl) Actuarial assumptions
Year ended Year ended
Fasticaies 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Discounting rate 7.20% 7.00%
Future salary increase Not applicable 8.00%
Retirement age (years) - -
Withdrawal rate
upto 5 years of service 52% 52%
More than 5 years of service 1% 1%
Weighted average duration (years) 1 10

(v) Sensitivity analysis for pension fund

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Impact of the change In discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

31 March 2022

Year ended

- Impact due to increase of 1% (0.14) (14.39)
- Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.14 17.20
) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (discounted) 3 Marchgzza; 31 Mamhg:;;
Year
0to 1 year 29.88 28.23
1to 2 year 6.51 22,32
21o 3 year - 10.81
3to 4 year - 4,09
4 to 5 year - 4,28
510 6 year - 29.55
Total 36.39 99.28
(c) Compensated absences
(iy Amount recognised In the balance sheet is as under:
As at As at
Faricuiars 31 March 2023| _ 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation 1,064.28 971.72
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 1.064.28 971.72
(iiy Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Current service cost 192.04 191.99
Past service cost E B
Net interest on net defined bensfit liability/ (asset) 52.63 43.85
Immediate recognition of (gains) losses 7.94 11.74
Payment made during the year (160.05) -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 92.56 247.58 |




Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 38: Tax expense

. . : Year ended Year ended
(a) Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax 1.96 8.93
Deferred tax expense 2,014.95 2,178.62
Tax expense for earlier years (93.18) 11.52
1,923.73 2,199.07
e . " Year ended Year ended
R H
(b} Recanciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 8,995.36 8,254.10
Enacted tax rates (%) 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated at corporate tax rate 2,263.95 2,087.46
Reconciliation items
Impact of tax relating to earlier years (93.18) 11.52
Impact due to different tax rate {0.49) (0.71)
Tax impact of expenses not deductible B.97 18.00
Impact on account of deductions claimed under Income Tax Act (118.91) -
Others (136.61) 82.80
1,923.73 2,199.07
Note 39: Earhing per equity share
. Year ended Year ended
Particulers 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 7,071.63 6,095.03
Nominal value of equity share (%) 10.00 *10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share 11,68,61,908 11,67,62,779
Add : Diluting effect of potential equity shares issued as employee stock options 1,21,773 5,23,952
Add : Diluting effect of potential equity shares on conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares 41,82,379 -
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earning per share 12,11,66,060 11,72,88,731
Earnings per share
- Basic earnings per share (%) 6.05 5.22
- Diluted earnings per share (%) 5.84 5.20
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Archan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 40: Financial Instruments - fair value measurements

(A) Financial assets and liabilities

The following tables shows the carrying amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total
Financial Assels:

Cash and cash equivalents 4 - - 55,656.06 55,656.06
Other bank balances 5 - - 37,800.09 37,800.09
Trade receivables 6 - - 1,637.64 1,637.64
Loans 7 - - 4,78,221.95 4,78,221.95
Investments 8 7,872.00 5.00 - 7,877.00
Other financial assets 9 - - 2,757.32 2.757.32
Total 7.872.00 5.00 5,75,973.06 5,83,850.06
Financial Liabilities:

Debt securities 16 - - 30,084.77 30,084.77
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 - - 3,80,936.33 3,80,936.33
Subordinated liabilities 18 - - 42,327.83 42,327.83
Others financial liabilities 20 - - 9,946.14 9,946.14
Total - - 4,63,295.07 4,63,295.07
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total
Financial Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 4 - - 95,362.92 95,362.92
Other bank balances 5 - - 35,372.38 35,372.38
Trade receivables 6 - - 200.59 200.59
Loans 7 - - 3,71,019.93 3,71,019.93
Investments 8 - 5.00 - 5.00
Other financial assets 9 - - 547.14 547.14
Total - 5.00 5,02,502.96 5,02,507.96
Financial Liabilities:

Debt securities 16 - - 28,338.42 28,338.42
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 17 - - 3,41,078.35 3,41,078.35
Subordinated liabilities 18 - - 43,309.37 43,309.37
Others financial liabilities 20 - - 3,713.27 3,713.27
Total - - 4,16,439.41 4,16.439.41

{B) Falr value hlerarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are
defined based on the observabllity of significant inputs to the measuremant, as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market.

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 input; and
Level 3: inputs that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

(C) Fir ial ts and liabilities v

ed at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2023

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets:
Investments

7.877.00

Total

7.877.00 -

As at March 31, 2022

Level 1

Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets:
nvestments

5.00

Total

5.00 -

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
() Eligible portfolio loans valued by discounting the aggregate future cash flows (both principal and interest cash flows) with risk-adjusted discounting rate for the remaining
portfolio tenor. The Company considers the average valuation impact arrived using average lending rate of last quarter.
(b) For unquoted equity instruments, the Company has used eaming capitalisation method (fair value approach) discounted at a rate to reflect the risk involved in the business.

(c) For mutual funds and security receipts, the Company has used the net asset value (NAV) on the basis of the statement recelved from the investee party.

(D) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value Is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 2 inputs.

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

PApiENrs Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 55,656.06 55,656.06 95,362.92 95,362.92
Other bank balance 37,800.09 37,800.09 35,372.38 35,372.38
Trade receivables 1,537.64 1,537.64 200.59 200.59
Loans 4,78,221.95 4,75,004.70 3,71,019.93 3,82,864.62
Other financial 2,757.32 2,757.32 547.14 547.14
Total 5,75,973.06 5,72,755.81 5,02,502.96 5,14,347.65
Financial liabilities

Debt securities 30,084.77 30,788.48 28,338.42 22,395.27
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,80,936.33 3,79,860.23 3,41,078.35 3,53,948.70
Subordinated liabilities 42,327.83 43,041.20 43,309.37 36,725.19
Other financial liabilities 9,946.14 9,946.14 3,713.27 3,713.27
Total 4,63,295.07 4,63,636.05 4,16,439.41 4,16,782.43

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximate their fair value. These financial instruments include cash on hand, balances with
hanks, receivables and certain other financial assets and liabilities. Carrying values were assumed to approximate fair values for these financial instruments as they are short-
term In nature and their recarded amounts approximate fair values or are receivable or payable on demand.




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: Financial risk management

Risk Management

The Company's activitios expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company risk management framework. The Company manages the risk basis policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles for overall
risk management. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Risk management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents|Credit limit and ageing analysis  [Highly rated bank deposits and
(excluding cash on hand), other diversification of asset base.

bank balances, investments, loans,
trade receivables and other
financial assets.

Liquidity risk Borrowings, debt securities, |Cash flow forecasts Committed borrowing and other credit
subordinated  liabllitles,  trade faciliies and sals of loan assets
payables and other financial (whenever required).
liabilities.

Market risk - interest rate Change in interest rate of variable|Sensitivity analysis Review of cost of funds and pricing
rates borrowings, debt securities disbursement.

and subordinated liabilities.

Market risk - security price Investments in equity securities,|Sensitivity analysis Diversification of portfolio, with focus
mutual funds, security receipts and on strategic investments.

cortificate of  deposits and
commercial papers.

In order to avold excessive concentration of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

A, Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents excluding cash In hand, other bank balances, investments, loan assets, trade receivables and other financial assets. The Company
continuously monitars defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls,

a) Credit risk management

Based on business snvironment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial assst is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time
period as per contract. ‘The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on risk monitoring and measurement metrics and well defined loan appraisal process. Internal credit
rating and monitoring is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early
identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

(i) Low credit risk

(11} Moderate credit risk

(iii) High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature Assets covered Basis of expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents {excluding cash on|Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected
hand), other bank balances, investments, loans,|credit loss

trade receivables and other financial assets

Moderate credit risk Loans Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected
credit loss

High credit risk Loans Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for
Financial ts that expose the entity to credit risk

. As at ’ As at
Famc s March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
(i} Low credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents (#) 56,620.01 95,307.35
Other bank balances (*) 37,800.09 35,372.38
Trade receivables (*) 1,685.08 200.59
Investments 7,877.00 5.00
Loans (*) 4,65,644.48 3,47,813.23
Other financial assets (*) 2,842.45 623.65
(ii} Moderate credit risk -
Loans (*) L 27,320.44 48,322.90
(iii) High credit risk
Loans (*) 13.721.20 18,700.69

(*) These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without netting off impairment loss allowance.
(#) Exclude cash in hand balance since there is no credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated deposits from banks and financial institutions
across the country.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables measured at amortised cost and credit risk related to these are managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits, receivable on assignment, insurance claim receivables and other receivables. Credit risk related to these
other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: Financlal risk management (cont'd)
a) Credit risk management (cont'd)
Loans

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems and appraisal process to assess the credit risk and define credit limits of barrower,

thereby, limiting the credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties. These

identification of risks and suitable structuring and credit risk mitigation measures. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongeing basis for amol

become past due and default is considered to have occurred when amounts receivable become 90 days past due,

The major guidelines for selection of the client includes:

1, The client’s income and fixed obligation to income ratio levels must be within the prescribed guidelines of Reserve Bank of Indi
2. The client must possess the required KYC documents;

3. The client’s household must be engaged in some form of economic activity which ensures regular and assured income;

4. Client must agree to follow the rules and regulations of the organisation and

proc

include a det

a;

iled appraisal methodology,
unts loan receivables that

5. Credit bureau check — In order to deal with the problem of over extension of credit and indebtedness of the client, the organisation undertakes credit bureau checks compulsorily for
every client. The credit bureau check helps the organisation in identifying clients with poor repayment histories and multiple loans.

b) Credit risk exposure
i) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
The Company has made expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans.

Particulars Cash and cash | Other bank Tl:ade Investments Other financial |
equivalents [*) balances receivables assets

Year ended March 31, 2023

Estimated gross carrying amount 55,620.01 37,800.09 1,685.08 7,877.00 2,842.45
Less: Expected credit losses - - 147.44 B 85.13
Carrying amount net of impairment allowance 55.620.01 37,800.09 1,537.64 7.877.00 2,757.32
Year ended March 31, 2022

Estimated gross carrying amount 95,307.35 35,372.38 200.59 5.00 623.65
Less: Expected credit losses - - - - 76.51
Carrying amount net of impairment allowance 95,307.35 35,372.38 200.59 5.00 547.14

(*) Exclude cash in hand balance since there is no credit risk.

ii) Movement of carrying amount and expected credit loss for loans
Definition of default:

The Company considers default in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month
ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default.

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 3,60,257.37 51,230.98 52,096.33
Assets originated* 2,75,892.29 45,293.57 5,991.82
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 172.40 (142.46) (29.94)
Transfer to stage 2 (2,238.99) 2,279.60 (40.81)
Transfer to stage 3 (5,028.53) (1,765.99) 6,795.52
Assets derecognised or collected (excluding write offs) (2,81,240.31) (48,572.80) (6,709.04)
Write - offs (including death cases & settlements) = - (39,403.39)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 3,47,813.23 48,322.90 18,700.69
Assets originated* 4,07,584.31 20,714.72 -
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 792.44 (773.69) {18.75)
Transfer to stage 2 (4,658.63) 4,665.21 (6.58)
Transfer to stage 3 (8,873.15) (4,337.41) 13,210.56
Assets derecognised or collected (excluding write offs) (2,77,013.72) (41,271.29) 19,478.60
Write - offs (including death cases & settlements) - - (37,643.32)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 4.65,644.48 27,320.44 13.721.20
* Assets originated during the year has been presented on net basis i.e. the collections towards fresh loans has been netted off,

Reconciliation of loss allowance from beginning to end of reporting period:

Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 14,560.23 21,313.45 35,120.47
Increase of provision due to assets originated during the year 8,610.37 17,979.81 4,053.56
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 7.33 (64.51) (20.25)
Transfer to stage 2 (73.39) 934.05 (36.23)
Transfer to stage 3 (186.21) (1,371.65) 5,024.39
Assets derecognised or collected (8,808.35) (20,348.85) (4,808.17)
Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year (3,087.83) 1,168.37 13,253.69
Write - offs (including death cases & settlements) - - (39.403.39)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 11,022.15 19,610.67 13,184.07
Increase of provision due to assets originated during the year 4,009.92 8,252.25 -
Net transfer between stages

Transfer to stage 1 7.77 (309.63) (17.51)
Transfer to stage 2 (45.59) 1,862.89 {6.13)
Transfer to stage 3 (86.74) (1,730.17) 12,322.58
Assets derecognised or collected (2,758.70) (16,366.93) 18,650.98
Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year (7,555.61) (246.45) 6,307.66
Write - offs (including death cases & settlements) - - (37.643.31)|
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 (#) 4,593.20 11,072.63 12.798.34f

(#) If the probability of default increases or decreases by 10 basis point the expected credit loss will increase or decrease by ¥337.12 lakhs respectively. Similarly, if the loss given
default increases or decreases by 100 basis point the expected credit loss will increase or decrease by ¥173.94 lakhs respectively,
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Arohan Financlal Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: Financlal risk management (cont'd)
(c) Concentration of loans (*)

As at|’ As at
Rarticulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Micro finance lcans 5,05,831.33 4,03,215.4%
Micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME) - 2,216.24
Secured term loans to corporates (#) 854.79 9,405.08
Total 5,06,686.12 4,14,836.82

(#) The secured term loans disbursed to corporates are all secured by book debts.
(*) The above figures represents the gross loan value along with Interest accrued.

(B) Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities (other than derivatives) that are setiled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are

due.

The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity positions (also comprising the
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company also takes into account fiquidity of the market in which the entity

operates.

(i} Financing arrangements

The Company has access o the following funding facilitiss:

As at March 31, 2023 Total facil Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one year 70,000.00 33,500.00 36,500.00
- Expiring beyond one year L . -
Total 70,000.00 33,500.00 36,500.00
As at March 31, 2022 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one year 1,00,000.00 65,000.00 35,000.00
- Expiring beyond one year = - -
Total 1,00,000.00 65,000.00 35,000.00
(ii) Maturities of financial assets and liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1.2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 55,766.91 - - - 55,766.91
Other bank balances 19,858.92 9,206.73 10,207.14 1,551.15 40,823.94
Trade receivables 1,685.08 - - - 1,685.08
Loans 4,00,025.26 1.84,643.44 4,846.22 12,734.87 6,02,249.79
Investments - - - 7.877.00 7,877.00
Other financial assets 2.684.85 12.73 4.26 55.48 2,757.32
Total undiscounted financlal assets 4,80,021.02 1,93,862.90 15,057.62 22,218.50 7,11,160.04
Financial liabilities

Debt Securities 12,579.20 9,655.47 1,443.23 13,299.11 36,877.01
Borrowings other than debt securities 2,69,478.00 1,19,008.88 27,008.60 - 4,15,495.48
Subordinated liabilities 8,153.58 5,459.41 18,717.88 29,013.39 61,344.26
Other financial liabilities 9,624.08 177.98 89.61 182.81 10,074.48
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 2,99,834 86 1,34,201.74 47,259.32 42,495.31 5,23,791.23
Net undiscounted financial assets/ (liabilities) 1.80,186.16 59,661.16 (32,201.70) {20,276.81) 1,87,368.81
As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Financial assets

Non-derivatives

Cash and cash equivalents 95,642.56 - - - 95,642.56
Other bank balances 13,157.21 18,180.85 3,858.79 2,527.40 37,724.25
Trade receivables 200.59 - - - 200.59
Loans 3,55,933.99 1,07,340.08 700.50 16,825.42 4,80,799.99
Investments - - - 5.00 5.00
Other financial assets 457.86 44.41 12,73 47.18 562.18
Total undiscounted financial assets 4,65392.21 | 1,25,565.34 4,572.02 19,405.00 6,14,934.57
Financial liabilities

Non-derivatives

Debt Securities 12,079.93 11,135.43 8,111.23 - 31,326.59
Borrowings other than debt securities 3,66,211.29 95,583.88 14,589.52 849.58 4,77,234.27
Subordinated liabilities 6.811.69 8,126.86 5,459.41 47,731.27 68,129.23
Other financial liabilities 3,374.14 124.45 74.76 249.52 3,822.87
Total undiscounted financial liabllities 3,88,477.05 1,14,970.62 28,234.92 48.830.37 5,80,512.96
Net undiscounted flnancial assets/ {liabilities) 76,915.16 10,594.72 (23,662.90) (29,425.37) 34,421.61




Archan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: Financial risk management (cont'd)

{C) Market risk
a) Interest rate risk

(i} Liabilities

The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. As at March 31, 2023, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates

through debt securities, other borrowings and subordinated liabilities at variable interest rates.
Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure (*) of the Company to interest rate risk:

. As at As at
[farticuiars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Variable rate liabilities

Debt securities - 6,250.00
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,49,645.59 1,24,395.11
Subordinated liabilities 2,500.00 10,000.35
Fixed rate liabilities
Debt securities 29,120.00 21,310.00
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 59,295.40 1,06,732.93
Subordinated liabilities 40,000.00 33,500.00
Liability against securitisation 72,139.97 1,09,822.62
Total 4,52,700.96 4,12,011.01

(*) Figures are presented at principal carrying value.

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on debt securities, other borrowings and subordinated liabilities, Below is the

sensitivity of profit and loss in interest rates.

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates — increase by 0.50%
Interest rates — decrease by 0.50%

2,016.23
(2,016.23)

1,878.41
(1,878.41)

* Holding all other variables constant

{ii) Assets
The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost bearing fixed rate of interest, hence sensitivity analysis is not been presented,

{b) Price risk

Exposure

The Company’s price risk exposure arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through
profit and loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets. As on balance sheet date there is no material investment in their
balance sheet.

Legal and operational risk

Legal risk

Legal risk is the risk relating to losses due to legal or regulatory action that invalidates or otherwise precludes performance by the end user or its counterparty under the terms of the
contract or related netting agreements.

The Company has developed preventive controls and formalised procedures to identify legal risks so that potential losses arising from non-adherence to laws and regulations,
negative publicity, etc. are significantly reduced. As at 31 March 2020, there are no material legal cases pending against the Company. Based on the opinion of the Company’s legal
advisors, the management believes that no substantial liability is likely to arise from these cases.

Operational risk

Operational risk framework is designed to cover all functions and verticals towards identifying the key risks in the underlying processes. The framework, at its core, has the following
elements:

1. Documented Operational Risk Management Policy.

2. Well defined Governance Structure,

3. Use of Identification and Monitoring toals such as Loss Data Capture, Key Risk Indicators, BRisk Operation Grading of branches every quarter.

4. Standardised reporting templates, reporting structure and frequency.

The Company has adopted the internationally accepted 3-lines of defence approach to operational risk management.

First line ~ Field Operations, Central Operation & Product function and Credit vertical exercise & also evaluate internal compliance and thereby lay down/ calibrates processes &
paolicies for further improvement. Thus, the approach is “bottom-up”, ensuring acceptance of findings and faster adoption of corrective actions, if any, to ensure mitigation of perceived
risks.

Second line — Independent risk management vertical supports the first line in providing deep analytics insights, influencing risk mitigation strategies and provides oversight through
regular monitoring. All key risks are presented o the Risk Management Committee on a quarterly basis.

Third line - Internal Audit conducts periodic risk-based audits of all functions and process to provide an independent assurance 1o the Audit Committee.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 42: Capital management

The Company's capital management objectives are

- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

- to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong
- to provide an adeqguate return to shareholders

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the
subordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assefs to reduce debt.

As at As at
particufars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Net debt 4,63,348.93 4,12,726.14
Total equity 1,33,802.51 1,02,348.09
Net debt to equity ratio 3.39 4.03
Note 43: Maturity analysis of assets and liabllities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are e e recovered or settled.
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Within After Within After
jhasETS 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 55,656.06 - 95,362.92 -
Other bank balance 19,185.18 18,614.91 12,643.35 22,729.03
Trade receivables 1,537.64 - 200.59 -
Loans 3,14,019.96 1,64,201.99 2,77,074.62 93,945.31
Investments - 7,877.00 - 5.00
Other financial assets 2,712.21 45,11 _457.86 89.28
3,93,111.05 1,90,739.01 3,85,739.34 1,16,768.62
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 4,268.74 - 4,820.31 -
Deferred tax assets (Net) 4,328.05 7.,518.86 257439 11,199.13
Property, Plant and Equipment 167.46 363.34 135.45 265.26
Intangible assets under development 4406 - 45.04 -
Other Intangible assets 94.70 120.35 125.81 143.66
Right to use asset 168.97 321.08 109.52 283.91
Other non-financial assets 571.12 - 749.01 -
9,643.10 8,323.63 8,559.53 11,891.96
Total assets 4,02,754.15 1,99,062.64 3,94,298.87 1,28,660.58
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financlal liabilitles
Payables
(I) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - - - -
(ll} Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises S E c 0
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and - - = -
Debt securities 10,839.01 19,245.76 10,736.36 17,602.06
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,44,787 11 1,36,149.22 2,46,617.25 94,461.10
Subordinated liabilities 2,545.50 39,782.33 1,102.94 42,206.43
Others financial liabilities 9,575.30 370.84 3,368.75 344.52
2,67,746.92 1,95,548.15 2,61,825.30 1,54,614.11
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net}
Provisions 473.17 1,995.12 439.57 1,660.13
Other non-financial fiabilities 2,250.92 - 1,970.55 101.70
2,724.09 1,995.12 2,410.12 1,761.83
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,70,471.01 1,97,543.27 2,64,235.42 1,56,375.94
Net Equity 1,32,283.14 1,519.37 1,30,063.45 (27,715.36)

Note 44: Transferred financial assets

In the course of its micro finance activity, the Company makes transfers of financial assets, where legal rights to the cash flows from the asset are passed to the counterparty and
where the Company retains the rights to the cash flows but assumes a responsibility to transfer them to the counterparty.
The Company has securitised its loan assets to an unrelated and unconsolidated entities. As per the terms of the agreements, the Company is exposed to first loss default guarantee
ranging from 17% to 18% of the amount securitised and therefore continues to be exposed to significant risk and rewards relating to the underlying mortgage receivables. Hence,

these loan assets are not derecognised and proceeds received are presented as borrowings.

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,

together with the assoclated liabilities:

As at As at
SecuEtisagon 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount of securitised assets 79,717.95 1,16,087.73
Gross caitying amount of associated liabilities 72,138.97 1,09,822.63
Carrying value and fair value of securitised assets 79,717.95 1,18,087.73
Carrying value and fair value of associated liabllitios 72,139.97 1,09,822.63
Net position 7,577.98 6,265.10
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 45: Information on related party transactions as required by Ind AS - 24:

A, List of related parties

Relationship

Name

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Manoj Kumar N Nambiar - Managing Director

Milind R Nare - Chief Financlal Officer

Anirudh Singh G Thakur - Company Secretary

Ranjan Das - Chief Risk Officer

Bharat Sondur - Chief Business Officer (joined on December 29, 2021 {ill
March 31, 2023)

Directors

Dinesh Kumar Mittal (Independent Director)
Vineet Chandra Rai (Director)

Anurag Agarwal (Director)

Matangi Gowrishankar (Independent Director)
Rajat Mohan Nag (Independent Director)
Sumantra Banerjee (Independent Director)

Entities which are able to exercise control or have significant influence

Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company-It Limited
Tano India Private Equity Fund Il

Entities under common control

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited
Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited
Aavishkaar Capital Advisory LLP

Aavishkaar Foundation

Ashv Finance Limited (Erstwhile Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank (w.e.f. August, 08, 2022)

Ulink Agritech Private Limited

Enterprise over which KMP have significant influence or control

Tribetech Private Limited

B. Nature of transactions with related parties:

Name of party with nature of transaction

Loan availed
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Loan repaid (Including interest)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Accrued finance cost on loan availed (gross)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Loan processing charges on loan availed {gross)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Fixed deposit
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Interest on fixed deposit (gross)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank

Remittance under business transfer agreement
Ashv Finance Limited

Reimbursement of expenses paid

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited
Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited

Ashv Finance Limited

Business support fees
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited
Ashv Finance Limited

Corporate social responsibility
Aavishkaar Foundation (*)

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2023

(") Includes CSR contribution by Arohan employees of 240.04 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : ¥34,71 Lakhs)

Director's commission (#)

Dinesh Kumar Mittal

Matangi Gowrishankar

Rajat Mohan Nag

Sumantra Baneriee

(#) The above amounts are excluding taxes

1,000.00 -
141.31 -
8.38 N
273 -
283.15 -
70.65 -
3.20 1,850.45
= 0.19
- 2.68
- 268
7.92 16.06
43.31 29.28
13.30 9.40
0.47 0.42
47.20 75.64
25.00 25.00
12.50 15.00
12.50 10.00
12.50 10.00
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Archan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 45: Information on related party transactions as required by Ind AS - 24: (cont'd)

B. Nature of transactions with related parties: (cont'd)

Remuneration

Manoj Kumar N Nambiar : 230.62 138,61
Milind R Nare 123.54 105.54
Anirudh Singh G Thakur 88.75 74.29
Ranjan Das 80.84 65.87
Bharath Sondur 48,11 75.19
Sitting Fees (#)
Dinesh Kumar Mittal 4.60 3.20
Matangi Gowrishankar 7.00 6.40
Rajat Mohan Nag 5.80 6.20
Sumantra Banerjee 5.20 7.20
(#) The above amounts are excluding taxes

Year ended Year ended
C. Short-term employee benefits for Key management personnel 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-term employee benefits {including remunerations) 540.96 438.24
Post-employment benefits (**) 30.90 21.26

(*) As provisions for gratuity and leave benefits are made for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key management personnel are not
specifically identified and hence are not included above

As at As at
D. Outstanding balances with related parties: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other receivables
Ashv Finance Limited 1.39 0.92
Fixed Deposit (including accrued Interest)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank 353.79 -
Other payables
Ashv Finance Limited ) 1.33 1.86
Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited 0.77 3.28
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited 17.75 17.75
Dinesh Kumar Mittal 25.00 25.00
Matangi Gowrishankar 12.50 15.00
Rajat Mohan Nag 12.50 10.00
Sumantra Banerjee 12.50 10.00
Loan availed {including accrued interest)
Shivalik Small Finance Bank 894.77 -
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Arohan Financlal Services Limited
Summary of significant g policles and other exp: y Information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts In T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 46: Addltional disclosures pursuant to the RBI Master Direction RBUDNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10,119/2016-17

1) Capltal to risk asset ratlo {CRAR)

As at
31 March 202

Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%)
CRAR - Tier | Capttal (%)

CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%)

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1l Capital

Amount raised by issus of Perpetual Debt Instruments

28.74%
25.46%
3.28%

As at

31 March 2022
34.58%
27.18%

7.40%
22,500

il} Investments

As at
31 March 2023

As at|
31 March 2022

A. Value of Investments
Gross Value of Investments:
a} in India

b) Outside India

Provislons for Depreclation:
a) In India
b) Outside India

Net Value of iInvestments:
a) In india
b) Outside India

B. M t of p held t ds depr on ¢
Opening Balance

Add: Provisions made during the year

Less: Write-off Write-back of excess provisions during the year

Closing Balance

7,877.00

7,877.00

5.00

5.00

5,00

5.00

1i) Derivatives .
The Company does not have any derivatives exposure in the current and previous year.

Iv) Disclosures relating to Securitisation

A) Securitisation

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

1) No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the originator

2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs (*)

3) Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
A} Off-balance sheet exposures

(i) First loss

{ii) Others

B) On-balance sheet exposures

(a) First loss In the form of

() Fixed deposits

(ii) Over collateral

(b} Others

4) Amount of expasures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

a) Off-balance sheet exposures

B e 10 own ions

« First loss

- Others

(1) Exposure to third party securitisations

- First loss

- Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures

(i) Exposure to own securitisations

- First loss

- Others

{ii} Exposure to third party securitisations

- Firstloss

- Others

5. Sale cansideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale an account of securitisation
6. Outstanding value of services provided by way of, liquidity support, post-securitisation asset servicing, ete.(*)
7. Performance of facility provided viz. Credit enhancement, liquidity support, servicing agent etc.

Credit enhancement:

{a) Amount paid

(b) Repayment received

(c) Outstanding amount

|Servicing agent:

(a) Amount paid

(b) Repayment received

(¢) Outstanding amount

8. Average defauit rate of portfolios observed In the past in respect of microfinance loans
9. Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underiying asset.
10. Investor complaints

(a) Directly/Indirectly received and;

(b) Complaints outstanding

16
87,917.97

29,486.76
13,708.78
15,778.00

1.56,827.81
87,917.97

34,320.73 (19.45%)
4,833.97 (2.74%)
29,486.76 (16.71%)

1.60
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

14
1,28,686.43

32,802.30
13,938.50
18,863.80

1,67,561.87
1,28,686.43

32,802.30 (17.27%)

1.40

Nit
Nit
Nil
Nil

(*) The total amount of securitisad assets Includes over collateral of 15,778.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥18,863,80 iakhs)

B) Datalls of financial assets sold to securitisation/ reconstruction company for asset reconstruction
Refer point number D below an details of non-performing financial assets purchased’ sold

C) Details of assi t by the Company

Detalls of loan transferred/ acquired during the year ended March 31, 2023 vide RBI circular RBVDOR/2021-22/86 DOR,STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 on transfer of loan exposures dated September 24, 2021 are glven
below:

(i) Details of loan transfer through direct asslgnment transaction In respect of loans not in defautt for the ‘Year ended March 31, 2023;

Particulars To Banks/ NBFC's

Number of loans 2,49,691

Aggregate amount of loans transferred (2 In lakhs) 54,589.54

Sale Consideration (T in lakhs) 54,589.54

Weighted average residual maturity (in manths) {*) 14.66

Weighted average holding period by the originator (in months) 7.11

Retention of beneficial economic intarest by the originator 2.80% to 15.90%

Tangible security covarags =
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans -

Number of instances where It has agreed to replace loans transferred to transferes(s) -
Number of instances where it has agreed to pay d arising out of any representation or warmanty -
(*) residual maturity from the time of transfer

(il) The Company has not acquired any stressed loans during the year ended March 31, 2023,

(ili} The Company has not acquired loans not In default during the year ended March 31, 2023,




Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other
(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

y information for the year ended 31 March 2023

D) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased! sold

The Company has not purchased any financial assets during the current and previous year

During the current year ended March 31, 2023 ( March 31, 2022 : Nil), the Company has entered into a agreement with Phoenix ARC Private Limited on December 29, 2022 to sell a portfolio of ¥10,033.36 Lakhs {net baok
value) of the Company, for an aggregate purchase consideration of 9,200 lakhs out of which the company is allotted with 800,000 security receipts at a face value of 1000/ each.

(a) The company has transferred certain NPA & SMA loans during the year ended March 31, 2023, details of which are given belaw:

Ta ARC's
. To permitted
Pareulaty NPA sma transferees
(i} Total number of loan assets assigned 1,10,656 21,219
ii) Aggregate principal outstending of loans transferred (% in lakhs) {*} 22 594.96 5,284.60
iii) Weighted average residual tenor of loans transferred (in months; 20.43 23,93
{iv) Net book value of loan assets transferred (at the tima of transfer) (T in lakhs) 6,838.75 3.194.61
(v] Aggregate consideration (2 in lakhs) 9,200.00
(vi] Addition consideration realised in respect of account transferred in earlier years Nif

(*) NPA Includes written off loans of 21,325,50 lakhs

Security Receipl's (SR's] held and recovery ratings assigned to such SR's by the credit rating agency.

As at
PFarticulars Category of recovery ratings March 31, 2023
| {¥in lakhs)
|Secun'ty Receipts under trust floated by ARC's Yet to be rated within time lines as per 7,872.00
Reserve Bank of India guidelines

v) Asset Liability Management

Disclosures refating to maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities are given in Note 51.
vi) Exposures

A) Exposure to Real Estate Sector

The Company did not have any exposure to real estate sector during the current and previous year.
B} Exposure to Capital Market

The Company did not have any exposure to capital market during the current and previous year.

C) Details of financing of parent company products

The Company does not have a parent company and accordingly disclosures is not required.

D} Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company during the current and previous year,

E) Unsecured Advances - Refer Note 7.

vii) Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from ather financial sector regulators

The Company is having Corporate Identity Number of U74140WB1891PLC053189 under Ministry of Comorate affairs.

B) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulatars

An amount of ¥0.16 lakhs {March 31, 2022: 0.27 lakhs) has been paid to Reserve Bank of India towards late submission fees of FC_TRS under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (as amended).
€) Disclosure of intra-group exposures

The Company has no intra-group exposures for the current and previous year,

D} Disclosure of unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure for the current and previous year.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwiss stated)

Note 46: Additional disclosures pursuant to Para 19 of Master Directi - Non-Banking Fi ial C -
2016. {contd.)

F) Ratings assigned hy credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

The details of ratings assigned by Cradit Analysis & Research Limited (CARE) dated Novembar 25, 2022 and ICRA Limited vide report dated December 21, 2022 & December 26, 2022 during the year are as follows:

nt Non-Deposit taking campany and Deposit taking company (Reserva Bank) Directions,

Facilities Ratings Remarks
Long-term Bank facilities ICRA A (-ve) (Stabla outinok)/ CARE A (-ve) (Negative outlook) Reaffirmad
Non-Convertible Debentures ICRA A (-ve) (Stabls outlook)/ CARE A (-ve) (Negative outiock) Reaffirned
Unsecured Subordinated Tier I Debt ICRA A (-ve) (Stable outlook) CARE A (-ve) (Negative outlook) Reaffirmed
B) Remuneration including sitting fees of Directors (other than Managing Director] [Refer note 45|
. As at| As at
Name.of Diractors 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
A. Birector's commission
Dinesh Kumar Mittal 25.00 25,00
Matangi Gowrishankar 12,50 15.00
Rajat Mohan Nag 12.50 10.00
Sumantra Banerjes 12.50 10.00
B. Sitting fees:
Dinesh Kumar Mittal 4.60 3.20
{Matangi Gowrishankar 7.00 6.40
Rajat Mohan Nag 5.80 8.20
Sumantia Banerjee 5.20 7.20
viii) Additional Disclosures
A] Provisions and Contingencies
" - = A s N As at As at
Break up of 'provistons and can(lngem-:las shown under the head expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision towards standard assets {15,636.68) (5,015.51)
Provision towards non performing assets (*) 1,081.82 (18,844.14)
Provision made towards Income tax (including for earlier years and deferred tax) 1,823.73 2,188.07
Other provisions and contingencies (empioyes benefits) 36B.59 311.19
{*) Does not include provision on accrued NPA interest as the sams is netted off in income.
B) Draw Down from Reserves
There have been no instances of draw down from reserves by the Company duting the current and previous year,
As at As at|
c f Ad E
i B g s 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Concentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenty targest borrowers 865.87 9,030.67
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 0.17% 2.16%
b} Concentration of Exposures
Total exposure to twenly largest borrowers/ customers 865.87 10,905.67
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to total expasure 0.17% 2.57%
c) Concentration of NPAs
Total expesure to top four NPA accounts 29.46 191.94
D) Sectoral exgosure
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
T;:lall::posu"re Percentage of To_taII::p g Percentage of
Sectors .0 Gross NPAs to (includes on Gross NPAs to
balance sheetand| Gross NPAs bal. sheetand| Gross NPAs
total exposure total exposure In
off-balance sheet off-balance sheet
in that sector that sector
exposure) exposure}
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - - - - -
2. Industry
.
il....
Others - - - - - -
Total of Industry {j+ii+...+QOthers) - -
3, Services
i. Secured term loan 854.79 26.06 3.05% 9,405.09 2284 0.24%
[
Others
Total of Services (i+ii+...+Others) 854.79 26,06 3.05% 9,405.09 22.84 0.24%
4. Personal Loans
i. Retail loans 4,695.96 824.50 17.56% 26,220.05 2,580.72 B.84%
ii...
Others
Total of Parsonal Laans (+ii+...+Others) 4,695.96 B24.50 17.56% 26,220.05 2,580.72 9.84%
5. Others - Microfinance Loan 5,01,135.37 13,662.95 2.73% 3.78,211.68 16,087.13 4.24%
Total _ 5,06,686.12 14,513.51 2.36% 4,14.836.82 18,700.69 4.51%
D) Sector-wise NPAs - Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector Beat Asat
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Agriculture & allied activities Nit Nil
MSME Nil Nil
Corparate barrowers (*) Nil Nil
Services 3.05% 0.24%
Unsecured personal loans 17.56% 9.84%
Microfinance Loan 2,73% 4.24%
Auto loans Nil Nil
Other personal loans Wil Nil
(*] Corporate borrowers are includad in the respective sactor.
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As at As at
) Movemant of NPAS 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1) Not NPAs to Net Advances (%) 021% 137%
i) Movenent of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening Balance 18,700.69 52,096.33
b) Additions during the year 50,050.58 12,787.34
c) Reductions during tha year 54,237,786 -46,182.88
d) Closing balance 14,513.51 18,700.69
1t} Movement of Net NFAs
a) Opening Balance 5,616.62 18,975.86
b) Additions during the ysar 1,197.58 -
c} Reductions during the year -5,668.89 -11,459.24
d) Closing balance 1,045.49 5,516.62
Iv) of p for NPAS ing provisions on standard assets)
a) Opaning Balance 13,184,07 35,120.47
b} Provislons made during the year 48,853.02 2233164
c} Write-offfwrite-back of excess provision -48,569.07 -44,268.04
d) Closing balance 13,468.02 13,184.07

F) Overseas Assaets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidlaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the current and pravious year.

G) Off-balance shest SPVs sponsored
The Company dld not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous year,

As at As at
e of 31 March 2! 31 March 2@'
a) Complaints recelved by the NBFC from its customars
1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year Tt 60
2, Number of complalnts received during the year 1,360 872
3. Number of complsints disposed during the ysar 1,410 881
3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 -
4. Number of complalnts pending at the end of tha year 2 |
b) M ived by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5. Number of by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 19 8
5,1 Of §, number of complalnts resolved in favour of the NBFC by Ofﬁee of Ombudsman 19 8
5.2 Of 5, number of through issued by Office of Ombudsman - -
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after pagsing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman agalnst tha NBFC - =
6. Number of awards unimpiemented within the stipulated time {other than those aupealed) > 5
Note: refer to an the grounds spaecifically mentioned In Integrated Ombudsman Sch 2021 (P y The Omt v for Ni g Financlal C 2018) and covered within
the amblt of the Scheme.
% Incredse/
::"r::;::n‘: Number of decrease in the Number of Of 5, number of
c) Grounds of complalnts pending at the complsints numbers] complints compraints
beglnning of the during P atthe | p g beyond
year the year recelved over the ond of the year 30 days
previous yaar
1 2 3 4 5 (3]
Year ended March 31, 2023
Non-observance of fair practices code 61 347 (11.25%}) 8 1
Loans and advances 3 235 167.05% 3 -
Staff behaviour - 101 - 1 -
Levy of charges without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foreclosure charges 1 17 54.54% - -
Mis-seliing 1 11 22.22% - -
Others. 5 849 138.60% il =
71 1360 21 1
Year anded March 31, 2022
Non-observance of fair practices code 41 301 107.98% 61 37
Loans and advances 3 88 (42.86%) 3 -
Staff behaviour 1 101 71.19% 5 -
Levy of chargas without prior notice/ excessive charges/ foraciosure charges - 1 100.00% 1 1
Mis-selling - 9 125.00% 1 -
Others 15 272 (17.82%) 5 1
60 872 71 39
x) Information on Instances of fraud Identified during the year 31 Adat Avsh
Nature of fraud
A. Cash embezziement
No. of cases 594 282
Amaunt of fraud 114.07 50.93
Recovery 33.47 27,17
[Amount provided for 80.60 23.16
B. Loans glven agalnst fictitious documents
No. of cases 5 8
Amount of fraud 8,63 16.65
Recavery 3H 12.00
Amaunt provided for 5.52 485
C. Others (Bnatching etc.)
No. of cases 25 34
Amount of fraud 15.18 25.10
Recovery 3.05 17.15
Amount provided for 12.13 7.95
Liablfitios side :
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
(1} Loans and advances avalled by tha bank] pany of Interast theracn but not pald (*): Amount Amount Amount Amount
ovardus di i
(a) Debenturas
Secured 30,121.38 - 28,410.70 -
Unsecured 32,513.31 - 33,684.40 -
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Cradits - - - -
(c) Term Loans
Secured 3,08,894.37 - 2,22,730.81 -
Unsecured 10,108.44 - 10,10642 -
(d) Int loans and - - - -
(8) Commercial Paper = - S 3
(N Public Depasits - = - -
{g) Other Loans king capftal loan and llabllity) 72,404.43 - 1,18,432.20 -
(*) The above figure 1 of loan charges*




As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

{3) Break up of loans and advances:

(2} Break-up of (1)(f} above (O puhlic dep of interest  thereon but not paid): Amount Amount Amount Amount
overdue outstanding overdus
(@) In the form of Unsecured debenturas Z 5 =
(b} In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security - - -
(C) Cther public deposits - B =
Assets side
As at] As at

a) Secured, gross

i1 Mareh ml_llhll.{s.hlﬂ%
B54.70 9,

,405.08

b} Unsecured, gross 5,05,831.33 4,05431.73
Total 5.06,686.12 4,14, 836.82
Figures of loans and advances also includes accrued interest, unamortised loan pr ing fees, costs and ara based on Ind AS numbers.

{4) Break up of leased assets

As at As at
1M

{i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
{a) Finance lease

{b) Operating lease

(ii} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assetls on hire

(b) Repossessed asset

{il) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

{a) Loans whers assets have been repossessed

(b} Loans other than (a) above

(5) Breakup of investments

Current Investments :

1. Quoted

(1) Shares

(a) Equity

(b} Preference

(i) Debantures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Cthers

2, Unquoted

() Shares

(a) Equity

{b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Govarnment Securitles
(v) Others

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted

{i) Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Governmant Securities
(v) Others

2. Unquoted

() Shares:

(a) Equity

{b) Preferenca A
(il Debentures and Bonds
{ii) Units of mutual funds
{v) Government Securities

(v} Others (Security Receipls

7,672.00 -




Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 46: Additional disclosures pursuant to Para 19 of Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking company and Deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (cont'd)

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) Net of provision as at 31 March 2023
Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
{b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 823.67 4,77,398.28 4,78,221.95
Total 823.67 4,77,398.28 4,78,221.95
(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) Net of provision as at 31 March 2022
Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries N - 5
(b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 9,327.29 3,61,692.64 3,71,019.93
Total 9,327.29 3,61,692.64 3,71,019.93
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current e As Tt 31/ March 2023 s As alt 31IMarch 2022
and long term) in shares and securities {both quoted and arketivalue Book value arxetivalue Book value
unquoted) Breakup or fair value | (net of provisions)| Breakup or fair {net of

or NAV value or NAV provisions)
Category
1. Related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 7,877.00 7.877.00 5.00 5.00
Total 7,877.00 7,877.00 5.00 5.00

As at As at

(8) Other information

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

(i) Gross non-performing assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
(i) Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties
~ (b) Other than related parties
{iii) Assets acquired on satisfaction of debt

14,5613.51

1,045.49

18,700.69

5,516.62
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Archan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Z lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 48: Disclosures pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020.

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
As on March 31, 2023

: Loss allowances - Difference
Asset Gross carrying L . Provisions
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as| amount as per (proYlswns) as | Net carrying required as per g L1 lnd )
e required under amount 109 provisions
per Ind AS 109 Ind AS (**) Ind AS 109 IRACP norms and IRACP norms
(A) (B) (€) (D) (E=C-D) (F) {G=D-F)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 4,65621.12 4,589.72 4,61,031.40 4,889.80 (300.08)
Stage 2 26,551.48 10,406.42 16,145.06 1,499.72 8,906.70
Subtotal (A) 4,92,172.60 14,996.14 4,77,176.46 6,389.52 8,606.62
Non-Performing Assets (NPA) (#)
Stage 1 (*) 23.36 3.48 19.88
Substandard Stage 2 (%) 768.96 666.21 102.75 1,927.35 11,540.68
Stage 3 13,721.20 12,798.34 922.86
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - - - -
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind N _ 3 _ _
AS 109 but not covered under current Income Stage 2
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning _ } : _ :
{IRACP) norms Stage 3
Subtotal (B) 14,513.52 13,468.03 1,045.48 1,927.35 11,540.68
Stage 1 4,65,644.48 4,593.20 4,61,051.28 4,889.80 (300.08)
Total (A+B) Stage 2 27,320.44 11,072.63 16,247.81 1,499.72 8,906.70
Stage 3 13,721.20 12,798.34 922.86 1,927.35 11,540.68
Total 5,06,686.12 28,464.17 4,78,221.95 8,316.87 20,147.30
(*) The gross carrying amount of stage 1 and 2 in non-performing assets section are classified in respective stages as per Ind AS.
As on March 31, 2022
Asset Gross carrying Loss a.llf)wances . Provisions e
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms classification as| amount as per (proYlsmns) as | Net carrying required as per betyicen I".d A
per Ind AS 109 Ind AS () required under amount IRACP norms (*) 108 provisions
Ind AS 109 and IRACP norms
(A) (B) (€] (D) (E=C-D) (F) (G=DF)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 3,47,813.23 11,022.15 3,36,791.08 6,759.99 4,262.16
Stage 2 48,322,890 19,610.67 28,712.23 4,368.71 15,241.96
Subtotal (A) 3,96,136.13 30,632.82 3,65,503.31 11,128.70 19,504.12
Non-Performing Assets (NPA) (#)
Substandard Stage 3 18,700.69 13,184.07 5,616.62 4,504.13 8,679.94
Other‘ items such , as _guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - - - -
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind
AS 109 _but not covereq unfjer current _ln.co!ne Stage 2 - - - - -
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms Stage 3 = = o o B
Subtotal (B) 18,700.69 13,184.07 5,516.62 4,504.13 8,679.94
Stage 1 3,47,813.23 11,022.15 3,36,781.08 6,759.99 4,262.16
Total (A+B) Stage 2 48,322.90 19,610.67 28,712.23 4,368.71 15,241.96
Stage 3 18,700.69 13,184.07 5,516.62 4,504.13 8,679.94
Total 4,14,836.82 43,816.89 3,71,019.93 15,632.83 28,184.06

(**) Gross carrying amount as per Ind AS represents gross carrying amount, accrued interest, loan processing fees and securitised assets.

(# Includes 94,542 accounts having principal overdue of £5,807.53 lakhs and interest overdue of ¥983.57 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 {March 31, 2022: Includes
1,25,719 accounts having principal overdue of 6,217.24 lakhs and interest overdue of Z1,731.60 lakhs)
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Archan Financlal Servicas Limited

Summary of significant

and other

(All amounts In € lakhs unless otherwise statod)

y Information for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 50(A): Additional disclosures pursuant to the RBV2021-22/112D0R.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on Scaie Based Regulation (contd)
Detalls of change In composition of the Board during the current and pravious financlal year,

Gi y (l.e., /N / Chalrmar/ | Nature of change (resignation,

Name of Director gmm S e iy : = ge ) g Effective date

Mr. Mano| Kumar N Nambiar Executive - Managing Director Re-appolntment July 1, 2021

Mr. Kasper Svarrer Non Exscutive - Nomli Diractor Vacation May 11, 2022

Mr. Davki Arturo Paradiso Non Executive - Nominee Director A Additional Director sinca May 11, 2022
Nominee Director since August 11, 2022

Mr, Stephan Dongwon Lee Addltional Director Appointment =] 1, 2022

Ms. Matangl Gowrishankar Non Executive - Independent Director Re-appointment August 22, 2021

Where an independent director resigns befora explry of his/ her tarm, the reasons for resignation as given by his/ her shall be disclosed.: Nil
Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-ge shall ba disclosed: Nil

2) Commilttees of the Board and thelr composition

(8} Audit Committes

Audlt Committes has been constituted under Saction 177 of the Com
Requirements) Regulations 2015. The Committea has been charg:
levels of transparency, Integrity and aims to enhance the confidence in the
asssssment of the efficacy of the intemal control

The Audit C

jed with the

recommends the appointment of statutory auditor to the Board.

panles Act 2013 and under Regulation 18 and Part C of Schedule I} of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disciosure
principal oversight of financlal reporting process and to ensure accurate and timely disclosure with the highest
qualty of the Company’s financial reporting, to review of Intemnal audit reports and action taken raparts and
also looks after the compliance with the legal and statutory requirements, related party transactions and

Capacity of Meetings of the
(i.e., Executive/ Non- Committee
Name of the Director Member of Committes since | Exequtive/ Chalrman/ Number of shares held in the NBFC
Promoter nomines/
*Independent) — s
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 6 [ Nil
independent Director
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 6 4
Independent Director 19,800
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar Apri27, 2018 Non Exacutive - 3 5 NI
p nt Director
Mr, Dinesh Kumar Mittal () November 10, 2022 Non Executive - 6 3 Nil
I Director
Mr. Piyush Goenka April 27, 2018| Non Executive - Nominee [} 5 Nil
Diractor

(*) Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mittal is a member of the Committee w.e.f, November 10, 2022,

{b) Nomination and Remuneration Committes

Nomination and Remuneration Commities has been constituted under Section 178 of the Com,

panies Act 2013 and under Regulation 19 and Part D of Schedule Nl of the SEBI {Listing

Obligations and Di: e Req s} lati 2015. The G has baen responsible to that the C: y's T process including succession planning for the
senior management and the Board and specifically to assist the Board by Identifying, screening and reviewing Individuals qualified to serve as so that the i would
have appropriate skills to support the functioning of the Company and also to advise Board on Remt 1 policy for Di , Key Managerial Personne! and other employees.
Capacity
(1o, Executivel Non- | Nimber o1 Meetings of the
Name of the Director Member of Committes since E ve/ Chall N of shares held In the NBFC
Promotsr nomines/
Indeg W) Held Attended
Ms. Matangi Gowrlshankar Aprll 27, 2018 Non Exscutive - 5 5 Nil
Independent Director
Mr. Sumantra Banerjea April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 5 3 10,000
Independent Director
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 5 4 Nil
Independent Director
Mr, Piyush Goenka April 27, 2018| Nen Executive - Nominee § 4 Nil
Director
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai April 27, 2018| Promoter Nominee Director 5 3 Nil

C) Ris

Risk Management Committee has been constituted under Regulation 21 and Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 along with

the RB1 Mastar Direction. The C

has overall

ility to the Identification, evaluation and mitigation of strategic, operational, and extemal environment risks; for monitoring and

approving the risk policies and associated actionable. The Committes has baen also responsibie for reviewing and approving risk disclosure statements for dissemination

Number of Maetings of the
Capactty Committes
(l.e, E: ve/ Non-
Name of the Director Member of Committee since | Executive/ Chalrman/ Number of shares held In the NBFC
Promotar nomines/ Held Attended
Independent)
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 4 4 NIl
Independent Director
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Aprl 27, 2018 Non Executive - 4 3 10,000
Independant Director
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 4 4 NIl
Independent Director
Mr. Piyush Goenka April 27, 2018| Non Executive - Nominee 4 3 Nl
Diractor
Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinus Maria Van Der April 27, 2018| Non Executive - Nominee 4 Nil Nil
|Beak Director




Nota 50{A): Additional disclosures pursuant to the RBU2021-22/112DOR.CRE, REC.N0.60/03,10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on Scale Based Regulation (contd)

[d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

's Relath C has bean constituted under Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and under Regulation 20 and Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI {Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, The C: has been for of grievances of interest of investors, shareholders, debenture holders and other security
holders including complaints related to the transfer of shares, non—ecslpt of annual report and ipt of declared di and performing such ather functions as may be dalegated by tha
Board.

Capaclly Number of Meetings of the
Namae of the Director Member of Committes since S""' Exal . o/ Non- Commlitee A of shares held In the NBFC
Promoter nomines/ Hold Aftanded
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar April 27, 2018 Non Executive - 1 1 Nil|
Indep nt Director
Mr. Anurag Agrawal April 27, 2018 | Promoter Nominee Director 1 1 Nil
Mr. Mano] Kumar N Nambiar April 27, 2018|  Executive - Managing 1 1 Nil
Director

{e) Comparate Social Responsibility Committes

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. Primary objective of the Co
corporate soclal responsibillty, The Committee has overall responsibliity for Identifying the areas of CSR activities and Implementing and mon

of expanditure to be Incurred on the identified CSR activities.

mmitiee has been assisting the Board in fulfiling its
itoring the CSR Policy also recommends the amount

C Y of M gs of the

{l.s., Exacutive/ Non- Committee
Name of the Director Member of Committes since Chall / of shares held In tha NBFC

Promoter nominee/ Held Attended

Independent)

Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Aprll 27, 2018 Non Executive - 2 1 10,000

Independent Directar
Mr. Anurag Agrawal April 27, 2018| Promoter Nomines Director 2 2 Nil
Mr. Manoj Kumar N Namblar April 27, 2018 Executive Director - 2 2 Nil

Managing Diractor

Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinug Maria Van Der April 27, 2018| Non Executive - Nominee 2 Nil Nil
Beak Diractor

lotmant Ce

ran o securit me 68
The Share Transfer and Securities Allotment Committee of the Board is res,

guidelines of Companies Act, 2013

ponsible for ensuring that the shares allotment and transfer of the company should be fit and proper as par the

Capacity Number of Meetings of tha
(Le., Executive/ Non- Commiitea
Name of the Director Member of Committes since | Exacutive/ Chalrman/ Number of shares held In the NBFC
Promoter nomines/ Held Attended
Independant)
Mr. Manoj Kumar N Nambiar February 16, 2018| Exacutive - Managing 5 4 Nil
Director
Mr. Anurag Agrawal February 16, 2018| Promoter Nominee Director 5 5 Nil
Mr. Vineet Chandra Ral February 16, 2018| Promoter Nominee Director 5i 4 Nill
Mr, Plyush Goenka February 16, 2018| Non-Executive - Nominee 5 5 Nl
Director

{n) IT Strategy Committes

NBFCs are required to form an IT Strategy Ci

The Chal

1 of the C

shall be an Independent Director and CFO should be a part of tha Committee, The IT Strategy

Committes should meet at an appropriate frequency but not more than six months should slapse between two meetings. Tha Committee shall work in partnarship with other Board committees
and Senior Management to provide input to them. It will also carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line with the corporata strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements
and any other matter related to IT Govemnance,

Capacity Number of Meetings of the
(Le., Executive/ Non- Committee
Nams of the Director Member of Committee since | Executive! Chairman/ Number of shares held In the NBFC
Promoter nominee/ Held Attonded
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee February 16, 2018 Non Executive - 2 1 10,000
Independent Director
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag (*) Novemnber 10, 2022 Non Executive - 2 1 Nil
. independent Director
Mr. Piyush Goenka February 16, 2018| Non-Exacutive - Nominee 2 1 Nil
Director
Mr. Mano] Kumar N Namblar February 16, 2018 Executive - Managing 2 2 NI
Director
Mr., Arvind Murarka February 16, 2018| Chief Information Officer 2 2 Nil

(") Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag is a member of the Committee w.e.f. November 10, 2022.




Nota S0{A): Addltional disclosures pursuant to the RBI2021-22/112DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on Scale Based Regulation (contd)

3) General Body Meetings

Detalis of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meslings are mentioned below
SL No. Type of Meeting (Annunal/ Extra-Ordinary) Date and place

Special Resolutions passed
1 Annual General Meeting August 11, 2022 1. Incrense in borrowing power of the Company;
2. Creation of charge and to pravide security;
Thm)-\sh video 3. To Issue non-convertible dobentures;
C"“f‘“’f"’mg/"m“"'“d“’ 4, Payment of ission to the Independent Di
5. Amendment in the ‘AROHAN EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2010’
(“ESOP 2010/ “PLAN™);
6. Amendment in the “AROHAN EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 2018
(“ESOP 2018"/ “PLAN™);
7. Amendment in the “AROHAN EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION FLAN 2021"
(“ESOP 2021"/ “PLAN") and
8. Issuc of Shares with respect to Arohan Employee Stock Option Plan 2021.
2 Extra Ordinary General Meeting September 26, 2022 No Special Resolutions Passed In This EGM.
Through video
Conferencing/ other audio
visual means
3 Extra Ordinary General Meeting November 18, 2022 Tao issue cunmlative compulsorily convertible preference shares on a preferential basis
Through video through private placement.
Conferencing/ other audio
visual means
4 Extra Ordinary General Meeting November 26, 2022 No Special Resolutions Passed in this Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
Through video
Conferencing/ other audio
visual means
5 Extra Ordinary General Meeting December 12, 2022 1. Adoption of new/ revised Articles Of Association of the Company in order to align|
the same with respect to the change in the Amended and R d Sharcholiing
Through video agreement;
Conferencing/ other audio
visual means 2. To issue faty npulsorily convertible prefe shares on a preferential
basig through private placement.
6 Extra Ordinary General Meeting March 15,2023 1. Reappointment of Mr. Dincsh Kumar Mittal as Chairman and Independent Director;
Through video 2. Adoption of new/ revised Articles Of Association of the Company in order to align.
Conferencing/ other audio |the same with respect to the change in the Amended and restated Sharcholding
visual means agreement
7 Extra Ordinary General Meeting March 29, 2023 1. Reclagsification of Authorised Share Capital & Consequent Amendment to the
Capital clause in the M dum of Association of the C:
Through video
Conferencing/ other audio |2.To issue Cumulative Compulsorily convertible pref shares on a pref ial
visual means basis trhough private placement.
4) Details of with reg luding with respect to compliance with accounting and secretarial standards: Nil

5) Detalls of penaltles and strictures

The Company has complied with all the reqL f

on any matter related to the activities of the Company excepl a penalty of an amcunt of X0.16 lakhs has been paid to Reserve Bank uf Indla towards late submission fees of FG_TRS under
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1899,

No ies or strictures were imp on the Campany by Stock

or SEB or any statutory authority
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Note 50(A): Additlonal disclosures pursuant to the RB2021-22/112DOR.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021 on Scale Based Regulation (contd)

(b} There are no modified opinlon expressed by the auditors.
(c) There are no items of Income and expenditure of exceptional nature.

(d} Breach of financlal covenant:

(1) Debt securities
Lender Sanctlon date Description of financlal covenants Limit required Actual
{PAR 30 + restructure loan + net write-off of 12 months)/ less than 10.00% 16.09%
Japanese ASEAN Women Empowerment Gross loan partfolio (refer note 1)
Fund December2, 2020 (PAR 90 + restructure oans - provisionyl Tier 1 capital less than 10.00% 71.69%
- {refer note 2)
(PAR 30 + nan-covid restructure loan + net write-off of 12 less than 15.00% 15.55%
Blus Orchard Microfinance Fund May 34, 2022 months)/ Gross loan portfollo (refer note ence 3)
{PAR 90 + non-covid restructure loans - total provislon) Tier | less than 10.00% 13.79%
capital {refer note 4)
CDC Group December 18, 2020 (PAR 90 + restructure loans)/ Gross loan portfolio (refer note less than 5.00% 8.57%
z , &)
indlan Bank July 8, 2020 Qperatinal soif sufficlency ratio (refer note €) greater than 110.00% 108.89%
Northem Arc Capital Limited July 27, 2018 PAR 80 percentage (refer note 7) less than 2,00% 2.71%
{il) Borrowings {other than debt securities) and Subordinated llabllitiss
Particulars Sanction date Description of financial covenants Limit required Actual
March 31, 2022 (PAR 90 + non-covid restructure loans + net write-off of 12 less than 5.00% 14.31%
monthsl Gross loan portfolio (refer note 8}
less than 5.00% 14.31%
February 7, 2022 (PAR 90 + non-covid restructure loans + net write-off of 12
Borrowings {other than debt securities} soniary months)/ Gross loan portfolio {refer note 8}
(PAR 30 + rastructurs loans}/ Gross lean portfolio less than 5.00% 9.80%
March 21, 2022 {PAR 90 + restructure loans)/ Gross loan portfolio {refer note less than 3.00% 8.57%
5)
| Subordinated liabllitles March 30, 2021 {PAR 90 + restructura loans)/ Gross loan portfolla {refer note less than 5.00% 8.57%
3 5)

Note:
(1} Partfollo overdue for more than 30 days, restructured loans (Including restructuring under RBI resolution framework dated August 06, 2020 & May 05, 2021) and net write off for last 12
months has been considered as numerator and closing gross loan portfollo ag on March 31, 2023 as denominator.

(2) Gross loan portfolio overdue for mare than 90 days, restructured loans (including restructuring under RBI resolution framework dated August 06, 2020 & May 05, 2021) which is reduced by
NPA provision on owned portfolic has been considered as numerator and Tler 1 capital as denominator,

(3) Portfolio overdue for more than 30 days, non covid restructured loans (Including restructuring under RBI resolution framework dated August 08, 2020 & May 05, 2021) and net writs-off for
last 12 months has been considered as numerator and closing gross loan portfolio as on March 31, 2023 as denominator.

(4) Aggregate of gross |oan portfolio ovardue for mora than 90 days and non-covid restructured loans, reduced by NPA provision on owned portfolio has been considered as numearator and Tler |
capital considered as denominator.

(5) AUM cverdue for more than 90 days and restructured loans has been ed as th

gross loan p as on March 31, 2023 Is considered as denominator.

(6) Total revenue has bean considered as numerator and total expenses for the year ended March 31, 2023 as denominator.

(7) Gross loan portfolio overdus for more than 90 days as a percentage of gross loan pertfolio as on March 31, 2023

{8) Agaregate of gross loan portfolio overdue for more than 90 days, non-covid restructure loans and net write-off of 12 months considerad in neumerator and gross loan portfolio as on March
31, 2023 as denominator

(9} Gross loan portfolio represents assets under management (AUM)

(e) Divergence in asset classification and provisioning
There has bean no instance of additional provisioning requi t d by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) exceeding 5% of the reported profit before tax and impairment loss on financial
Instruments, neither there has been any instance of additional gross NPAs Identified by RB| exceeding 5% of the reported gross NPAs for the pervious financial year.

Note S0(B): Additional pursuant to the RB12022-23/29 DOR.CRE.REC.N0.25/03.10.001/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022,

Loans to Directors, senlor officers and relatives of Directors Current year| Previous yoarl
Directors and thelr relatives Nil Ni
Entitles assoclated with directors and thelr relatives NI Nl
Senlor Officers and thelr relatives NIl Nil
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Arohan Financlal Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 52: Disclosures In terms of RBI/2018-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04 November 2019 have been given below:

As at As at
(i) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty on borrowings 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of significant counterparties 23 23
Amount of borrowed funds from significant counterparties 4,16,377.37 3,86,210.60
Percentage of total deposits Not applicable Not applicable
Percentage of total liabilities 88.97% 91.83%

Notes:
i) A “Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's,
NBFC-Ds total liabllities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

Ii) Total Liabllities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidslines.

(1) Top 20 large deposits (amount In ¥ lakhs and % of total deposits) - The Company does not accept deposit hence not applicable.

As at As at
{Uiiopsen borowings 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount of borrowed funds from top ten significant counterparties " 3,10,553.84 2,86,996.37
% of total borrowings (#) 68.60% 69.66%
Note:
(*) Accrued interest on barrowings have not been considered in above calculation.
(#) Total borrowing has been computed as gross total debt basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines which includes securitisation transactions.
(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/ product

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Name of the instrument/ product Amount (**) Percentage of total Amount (**) Percentage of total
liabilities liabi|ities

Debt securities 29,120.00 6.22% 27,560.00 7.00%
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,81,080.96 81.43% 3,40,950.99 81.00%
Subordinated liabilities 42,500.00 9.08% 43,500.00 10.00%

Note:

(i) A "significant instrument/ product” is defined as a single instrument/ product of group of similar instruments/ products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-
NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-deposit taking NBFCs.

(if) Total Habllities has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & surplus and computed basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.

(**) Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does not includes accrued interest and other Ind AS adjustments,

As at As at
e oo s s 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1. Commercial papers as a percentage of total liabilities Not Applicable Not Applicable
2. Commercial papers as a percentage of total assets Not Applicable Not Applicable
3. Commercial papers as a percentage of public fund Not Applicable Not Applicable
4. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total liabilities Nil Nil
5. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total assets Nil Nil
6. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of public fund Nil Nil
7. Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of total liabilities 57.79% 62.82%
8. Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of total assets 44.94% 50.52%
9. Other short-term liabilities as a percentage of public fund 59.66% 64.01%

(vi) Institutionai set-up for Liquidity Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all the risks, including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in
the course of conducting its business. The Board approves the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors
approves the constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring and review of various aspects and types of risks, including
liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC are held at quarterly interval, Further, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO), which functions as the strategic decision-making body for the asset-liability management of the Company from risk-retum perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-
rails approved by the Board. The main objective of ALCO is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset liability management, market risk
management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to ensure adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of
interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and investment of surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held once In a month or more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes of
ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC and the Board of Directors In its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/ ratification.
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Arohan Financlal Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting pollicles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 54: Foreign Currency Disclosure

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 Margh 2023| 31 March 2022
(a) Earnings In forelgn currency
Miscellaneous income (Sale of accumulated carbon credit) 6.19 12.74
6.19 12.74
(b) Expenditure in foreign currency
Repairs and maintenance 298 -
Legal and professional expenses 50.66 2.58
53.64 2.58

Note 55: Disclosure in respect of Corporate Soclal Responsibility under section 135 of the Act and Rules thereon
A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as prescribed under section 135, CSR expenses have been incurred throughout the period on the activities
as specified in schedule VIl of the Act.

Year ended Year ended
fiasticutrs 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
(a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year 2183 68.67
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year 21.83 68.67

(c) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
(d) Tatal of previous years shorifall - -
(e) Reason for shortfall (*) - -

(f) Nature of CSR activities (**) - -
(g) Details of related party transactions 7.16 40.93
(h) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in
the provision during the year shall be shown separately

At the beginning of the year 9.88 35.09
Fresh provision made during the year 1.50 5.45
Payment made during the year 5.45 30.66
At the closing of the year 5.93 9.88

(*) work was not yet completed as a results the payments were on hold.

(**) CSR activities includes environmental and social initiatives. In environmental initiatives there are certain projects like disaster relief, COVID-19 relief, safe
drinking water & sanitisation and water conservation whereas social initiatives includes activities as women empowerment & education, livelihood trainings,
menstrual hygiene and health and well being.

Note 56: Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company.
The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. The Company is in a single business
segment (primary segment) of providing financial services to customers in India. Further, the Company is operating-in India which is considered as a single
geographical segment.

Note 57: Lease related disclosures

(a) Company as a lessee

In the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current and previous year, operating lease expenses which were recognised as rental expenses is now recognised
as depreciation expense for the right-of-use asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability. De-recognition of rental expenses and recognition of
depreciation and finance costs has positively impacted EBIDTA by % 216.85 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : ¥243.20 lakhs) and negatively impacted the PBT by ¥11.82
lakhs (March 31, 2022 : 20.49 lakhs).

(b) The table below describes the nature of Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-assets recognised on balance sheet:
As on March 31, 2023

Range of Average Number of Number of Number of
Right of use assets Number of remalning | remaining leases with leases with leases with
leases extension purchase termination
term lease term
option option option
Office premises 10| 8 months to| 24 months 10 - -
35 months
Fumniture 3| 75 months 75 months 3 - -
As on March 31, 2022
Range of Reesse Number of Number of Number of
Right of use assets Number of remaining | remaining leasos with leases with leases with
leases oxtension purchase termination
term lease term
option option option
Office premises 8| 2months to| 26 months 8 - =
71 months
Furniture 3| 87 months | 87 months 3 - -




Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note 57: Lease related disclosures (contd)

(c) Lease payments, not recognised as a liability
The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases with an expected term of 12 months or less) or fot leases of low value
assets. Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the

lease liability is as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Short-term leases 1,286.03 1,110.51
(d) Total future lease payments relating to underlying leases are as follows:

. More than As at
Particulars Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years| 31 March 2023
Lease payments 223.27 177.98 89.61 56.25 56.25 70.31 673.67
Less: Finance cost 48,78 31.74 19.33 14.22 9.58 4.69 128.34
Net present values 174.49 146.24 70.28 42.03 46.67 65.62 545.33

. . More than As at
Particulars Within 1 year, 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years| 31 March 2022
Lease payments 148.01 124.45 74.76 59.68 59.85 130.00 597.75
Less: Finance cost 42.71 31.91 23.93 19.20 14.74 14.44 146.93
Net present values 106.30 92.54 50.83 40.48 45.11 115.56 450.82

(e) Total cash outflow for leases for the vear ended March 31, 2023 was ¥216.86 lakhs (March 31, 2022: ¥234.22 |akhs).

(f) The Company has leases for office building and furnitures. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is
reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded
from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property,

plant and equipment.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset
can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other premises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair
and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the

lease contracts.

(g) As per Ind AS 118 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised was 11%.

Note 58: Contingent liabilities and commitments

! As at As at
e 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
(8) Demand for income tax received from income tax authorities in respect of which the Company has gone for appeal. 16.57 13.47
Based on the management assessment, crystallization of liability on these items is not considered probable and hence not
acknowledged as debt by the Company.

{(b) Sanctioned loan undisbursed - 1,975.00
(c) Capital commitment for purchase/ development of tangible and intangible asset (net of advances). 78.08 86.96

Note 59: Additional regulatory information pursuant to Ministry of Company Affairs Notification dated March 24, 2021:

A. Title deeds of Immovable Property

The Company does not own any immovable property in the form of land and building

B. Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
The Company has not granted any loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties

C. Details of Benami Property held

There have been no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

D. Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
The Company has availed borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and the returns or statements of current
assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions as at March 31, 2023, are in agreement with the books of accounts.

E. Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

F. Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has not entered into any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Act or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

G. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period as at March 31, 2023 except the following where no dues
certificate has not been received from the lenders and pending for charge satisfaction

Lenders Charge ID Sanction Date | Amount Cll.f;:t‘; s

Indian Bank 100432193 18-Sep-20 7,500 | 24-Mar-22
Indian Bank 100432195 18-Sep-20 2,500 | 03-May-22
Punjab National Bank 100269477 16-Mar-19 2,600 | 31-Jul-22
SIDBI 100315230 23-Oct-19 20,000 | 10-Feb-23
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 53: Additional regulatory information pursuant to Ministry of Company Affairs Notification dated March 24, 2021 (cont'd):
H. Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has no subsidiaries or investments in other companies, accordingly compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section

2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, are not appiicable.

I. Ratios
i As at As at| Percentage change in Explanation
Pafticulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022 ratio
(a) Debt equity ® [refer note 42] 3.39 4.03 (16%) [Due to fresh equity infusion during the financial
(b) Return on equity ratio © 5.08% 6.15% (2%) |vear in the form of compulsorily convertible
() Net profit ratio 4 8.41% 6.62% 27y, |Preference shares (CCPS)
(d) Return on capital employed ® 5.99% 6.15% (2%)
(e) Current ratio " Not applicable .
{f) Debt service coverage ratio " Not applicable -
{g) Inventory turnover ratio ¢ Not applicable -
(h) Trade receivables turnover ratio ‘" Not applicable -
() Trade payables turnover ratio " Not applicable -
() Net capital turnover ratio " Not applicable -
(K) Return on investment ¢! Not applicable -

Notes:

(1) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company registered under Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, hence these ratios are not applicable

(2) Debt - equity ratio = (debt securities + borrowings-other than debt securities + subordinated liabilities) / net worth, where net worth is aggregate of equity
share capital and other equity.

(3) Return on equity ratio = profit after tax / average net worth

(4) Net profit ratio = profit before tax/ total revenue from operations
(5) Return on capital employed = profit after tax / average networth

J. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Act,

K. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shali lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any
party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries®) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

L. Undisclosed income
There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

M. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Refer note 55

N. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.




Archan Financial Services Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 80: The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code') relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has
received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour
and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are
applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 61: Previous year ended figures have been regrouped! rearranged wherever necessary, to conform with the current year.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information referred in our
report of even date

ForM S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105047W
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